
  

 

 

HEALTH SCRUTINY 
PANEL 

Tuesday, 28 January 2014 at 6.30 p.m. 
Committee Room 1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 

Crescent, London, E14 2BG 
 

This meeting is open to the public to attend.  
 

Members: 
Chair: Councillor Rachael Saunders 
Vice-Chair: Councillor David Edgar 
 
Councillor Dr. Emma Jones, Councillor M. A. Mukit MBE, Councillor Gulam Robbani, 
Councillor Lutfa Begum, Councillor Zenith Rahman, David Burbridge and Dr Amjad 
Rahi 
 
Deputies:  
Councillor Peter Golds, Councillor Anwar Khan, Councillor Bill Turner and Councillor 
Lesley Pavitt 
 
The quorum for this body is 3 Members 

 
Co-opted Members:  
David Burbridge – (Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Representative) 
Dr Amjad Rahi – (Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Representative) 

 
Contact for further enquiries: 
Antonella Burgio Democratic Services 
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG 
Tel: 020 7364 4881 
E-mail: Antonella Burgio@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/comittee 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Public Information 
Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis.  
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings.  
No photography or recording without advanced permission.  

 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

 
Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place  
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf  
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda  

     
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned. 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date.  
 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users. 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record of the minutes of the meetings of Health 
Scrutiny Panel held on 3 September 2013 and the notes of the informal 
(inquorate) meeting held on 19 November 2013. 
 

3 - 18 

3. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

  

3 .1 Education Social Care and Wellbeing  (ESCW)   
 

 

 To receive a verbal update on Majlish Home Care services. 
 
 
 

 

3 .2 HealthWatch: Summary Feedback from Barts Health   
 

19 - 78 

 To receive a presentation and progress update from Dianne Barham – 
HealthWatch Director 
 
 

 

3 .3 Integrated Care - Education Social Care and Wellbeing  (ESCW) and 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)   

 

 

 To receive a verbal presentation on integrated care  
 
– ESCW Deborah Cohen, Service Head of Commissioning and John 
Wardell CCG 
 

 

3 .4 Health Scrutiny Review of A&E services   
 

 

 To undertake a verbal discussion on the subject of the Health Scrutiny 
review of A & E services. 
 

 

4. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  

 

  

 

Next Meeting of the Panel 
The next meeting of the Health Scrutiny Panel will be held on Tuesday, 11 March 
2014 at Committee Room 1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 
London, E14 2BG 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\4\8\AI00048840\$4pbifbnv.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



2 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\4\8\AI00048840\$4pbifbnv.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 03/09/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 3 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 

ROOM C1, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Rachael Saunders (Chair) 
 
Councillor David Edgar (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Dr. Emma Jones 
Councillor M. A. Mukit MBE 
David Burbridge 
 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
Nil 
 
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
David Burbridge – (Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Representative) 

 
Guests Present: 
John Wardell – (Deputy Chief Officer, Tower Hamlets Clinical 

Commissioning Group) 
Michael Pantlin – (Director of HR, Barts Health NHS Trust) 
Dr Steve Ryan – (Medical Director, Barts Health NHS Trust) 
Paul Larrisey – (Associate Director, Community Health Services, 

Barts Health NHS Trust) 
Janet Perry – (Barts Health NHS Trust) 
Dhruv Patel – (City of London Corporation Health Scrutiny 

Committee) 
Neal Hounsell –  
Wendy Mead – (City of London Corporation) 
Farrah Hart – (City of London Corporation) 
Luke Akehurst – (London Borough of Hackney) 
Ann Munn – (London Borough of Hackney) 
Mark Mann – (Head of External Communications, Barts Health 

NHS Trust) 
 

Officers Present: 
 
Deborah Cohen – (Service Head, Commissioning and Health, 

Education, Social Care and Wellbeing) 
Sarah Barr – (Senior Strategy Policy and Performance Officer, 

Corporate Strategy and Equality Service, Chief 
Executive's) 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 03/09/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

Tahir Alam – (Strategy Policy & Performance Officer, Chief 
Executive's ) 

Robert Driver – (Strategy, Policy and Performance Officer, One 
Tower Hamlets, Chief Executives) 

Frances Jones – (Service Manager One Tower Hamlets, Corporate 
Strategy and Equality Service, Chief Executive's) 

 
Alan Ingram – (Democratic Services) 

 
 
COUNCILLOR RACHAEL SAUNDERS (CHAIR), IN THE CHAIR 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Dr Amjad Rahi, Co-opted 
Member. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 11 June 
2013 be agreed as a correct record of the proceedings. 
 

4. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
Following introductions of those present, the Chair indicated that agenda item 
4.3 would be considered as next business after item 4.1.  However, these 
minutes reflect the original agenda order, for ease of reference. 
   
 

4.1 Barts Health NHS Trust - Update on Financial Turnaround  
 
Michael Pantlin introduced the presentation, as included in the previously 
circulated agenda, and commented that Barts Health NHS Trust faced 
financial challenges in order to achieve £78m savings by 31 March 2014.  
This had been further compounded by the merger of trusts over the past year.  
The Board of Barts recognised that there had been a slow start to the year, 
meaning that there was a current £24m year to date deficit but it was 
expected that the balance would be delivered by the due date. 
 
He stressed that there had been no change in the Trust’s health care mission 
to change and improve lives in East London and Barts Turnaround was being 
developed as a whole organisation effort to accelerate the development and 
delivery of safe cost improvements, never losing focus on quality.   The 
Turnaround encompassed 10 main principles, with patient safety being 

Page 4



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 03/09/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

paramount, and care improvement plans to achieve £55.7m savings, 
designed from the bottom up, with rigorous quality assessment and peer 
review mechanisms. 
 
Proper bill coding was very important, as the Trust was now paid on the basis 
of services delivered, rather than a block payment. 
 
The CQC report on Whipps Cross hospital had been disappointing, with three 
warning notices having been issued, and action plans were in place to 
address the areas of concern, which related to infection control in the 
maternity unit; safety and suitability of equipment in the maternity unit; staff 
appraisals and supervision in the elderly care service.  The Chief Hospital 
Inspector would review the action plans in November 2013. 
 
The Turnaround also aimed at reducing the length of patients’ stay in hospital, 
which reduced costs and improved the patient experience.  A further initiative, 
#becausewecare, was a call for all staff to commit to improving 
compassionate care and be welcoming to patients. 
 
The Chair then invited questions from those present and the Barts 
representatives made responses that: 

• Care improvement plans were supported by clinical leads, who worked 
with CIP teams on a sometimes cross-services and cross-sites basis. 

• They were confident of achieving the required savings by March 2014 
and each proposal was rated on how competent the organisation was 
in safety and deliverability.  All proposals were subject to very rigorous 
assessment and there were some 1700 such schemes in progress. 

• It was anticipated that the Chief Hospital Inspector’s report on Whipps 
Cross would be received by Christmas 2013, following which an action 
plan would be developed. 

• Over the past year, clinically-led schemes relating to procurement had 
achieved substantial recurrent savings.  Savings would also be 
achieved by getting people home from hospital as soon as possible, 
as long as this was a safe and effective course of action. 

• It was not considered that there was any way to negotiate a reduction 
in the national tariff efficiency requirement of £50m, as this was set on 
a national basis. 

• With regard to possible departmental/site closures, there would be a 
transformation in how health care was delivered.  For instance, stroke 
care and cardiac care services were now pooled and were thereby 
achieving better results.  A standard hospital model was not 
appropriate for all districts and discussions were also in progress with 
Newham about how health care would be structured in 10 years’ time 
and what would be the actual population needs.  Diabetes care had 
been revolutionised with skype appointments systems, etc. 

• The unacceptable results at Whipps Cross were not the result of 
leadership failures or changes, however, the aim now was to establish 
cross-organisational, topic-specific clinical groups.  It was accepted 
that work was also needed on how to deploy management and 
leadership to improve standards. 

Page 5



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 03/09/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

• Some wards at Whipps Cross had been found to be under-staffed and 
this would be addressed by efficiencies elsewhere.  The Trust’s 1600 
vacant posts were almost all filled by temporary staff and provided 
opportunities to give up vacancies, rather than staff members. 

• Work was ongoing to improve patient engagement with the Trust. 

• There had been success in good clinician to clinician liaison and 
patients were only referred back to their GP if an additional condition 
was discovered during treatment. 

 
NOTE:  Dr Steven Ryan asked Mr Burbridge to provide him with details of the 
arrangement he had mentioned whereby liaison between a housing provider, 
the local authority and hospital staff could free up to six hospital dialysis beds. 
 
The Chair thanked the Barts representatives for their contribution and 
commented that the Panel would use this to gain a better understanding of 
what the savings proposals meant for local services.  
 

4.2 Mental Health Needs Assessment and Strategy Update  (TO FOLLOW)  
 
Deborah Cohen introduced the presentation and Draft mental Health Strategy 
that had been previously circulated with the supplemental agenda, adding that 
an updated Strategy document had been tabled at the meeting.  The Strategy 
was being supported by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
Ms Cohen added that it was intended that service users could take control of 
their own lives and recovery, with a service approach that looked at the whole 
person.  The document also summarised development work that had been 
undertaken and summarised how the strategy had been organised. 
 
Due to the fact that the Borough had many young people, whose numbers 
would increase over the next 10 years, it was important to target the mental 
health of children and young people as a huge number of adults suffering 
from mental illness had manifested symptoms before the age of 18. 
 
Despite having achieved a national award for dementia services, other older 
people’s ailments such as depression would not be neglected. 
 
In response to questions from the Panel, Ms Cohen indicated that: 

• There were very low referral levels from the Bengali community to 
dementia services.  However, this had been addressed through the 
Alzheimer’s Society and a Sylheti-sepaking dementia café in the East 
London Mosque. 

• Elderly people were also affected by overcrowding.  Many people did 
not seek help due to a perceived stigma and discrimination regarding 
mental health problems, which caused embarrassment. 

• The next step in the strategy was to produce an action plan and it was 
hoped to work with other partners using the Council’s influence. 

• It was important to include schools in the process, as their effect on 
the mental health of young people was significant and this might be 

Page 6



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 03/09/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

addressed by bringing them into the work of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

• The new community teams could be monitored by patient satisfaction 
surveys and interviews as part of the assessment process.  Most 
dementia care would continue in specialised services and the teams 
would be looking mainly to address and support depression services. 

• Small voluntary organisations that wished to be included in the 
commissioning process but did not have the resources to do so could 
be helped by using consortium arrangements – as long as a lead 
organisation had appropriate rigour, this would not need to pass down 
to all groups included. 

 
The Chair stated that the Draft Strategy seemed to cover all of the main 
issues and was well though-out and comprehensive.  The Panel would 
continue to do what they could to scrutinise this work. 
 
Ms Cohen asked that Members email her with any other comments they may 
wish to make.    
 

4.3 Community Health Services and Integrated Care - Update from Barts 
Health NHS Trust and Tower Hamlets CCG  
 
John Wardell introduced the presentation as contained in the previously 
circulated agenda, which comprised an overview of work currently being 
undertaken to achieve integrated care.  He added that the over-arching aim 
was to allow individual service users to live independently and take more 
control of their own health care.  An added advantage would be the reduction 
in duplication of systems.  He made further comments that: 

• Meetings had been held for over a year involving Third and voluntary 
sectors to empower patients, users and their carers and to ensure that 
service users had to provide information only once. 

• Health and social care navigation would provide support to proactively 
deal with people’ needs across these areas of care. 

• Nine areas of interventions would be rolled out over the next  3 – 5 
years and patients would be risk-stratified to ensure appropriate 
concentration of care. 

• Key enablers had been identified, one of the largest of which was 
development of IT systems. 

• Tower Hamlets had developed a localised vision for an integrated care 
system wrapped around patients, GP services and social care.  The 
main principle of this was to put the patient at the centre of the system. 

 
Paul Larrissey put forward his section of the presentation, stating that weekly 
meetings were held involving the Council, Barts Health NHS Trust and mental 
health services, to develop a strategy over the next 3 – 5 years and there was 
much to achieve.  He also indicated that: 

• The Community Health Service had core services working with similar 
or same patient groups, including Adult Community Nursing; 
Community Virtual Ward; CReST short term intervention; Specialist 

Page 7



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 03/09/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

Nurses; Palliative Care Centre; Referral Hub (a single point of access 
for services). 

• Phase 1 of the process was moving towards the provision of eight 
integrated care teams across Tower Hamlets, based on the eight GP 
networks.  It was intended that they would manage all aspects of 
health for the local population and would include a rapid response 
element.  People would be supported at home to reduce hospital 
admissions. 

• A new governance framework was being developed around the teams 
and the aim was for them to be up and running by the end of 2013. 

• The current Phase 1 proposal was more like a co-ordinated care 
approach, with more integration occurring over years two and three.  
The CHS out-of-hours service was also being co-located with that of 
the Council. 

 
Mr Wardell added that application was being made to the Department of 
Health to participate in a pilot programme which might bring in extra IT and 
contractual support.  Interviews in this connection were to be held on 6 
September. 
 
In response to questions from the Panel, Mr Larrissey and Mr Wardell stated 
that: 

• Some IT solutions were hoped to go live this Autumn and it was 
intended to move towards more mobile working, whereby real time 
access to patients’ records could be achieved during home visits.  
Work was needed to ensure systems compatibility and how to record 
data.  At present there was no common denominator for this. 

• Work was underway on the governance element and patient assent for 
use and disclosure of personal information. 

• In order to monitor the success of the programme, there was a results 
sub-committee that would assess whether services had been 
delivered as promised and information on service quality would be 
obtained from patient feedback.  An overview would have to be taken 
to determine whether financial savings were being delivered by the 
proposals. 

• Each of the eight local partnership groups would have a Board jointly 
chaired by a GP and a Senior Nurse.  Consideration was being given 
to the inclusion of other partners and to determine the level of patient 
involvement.  The GP chairs would then report to a Joint Board, e.g. 
Barts Health NHS Trust Board. 

• Data would be refreshed regularly to ensure all individuals on the 
system were identified and to prevent any from falling out of view. 

 
The Chair thanked Mr Wardell and Mr Larrissey for their contribution and 
wished them well with their pilot application. 
 

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
 
 

Page 8



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 03/09/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

 
5.1 Tower Hamlets Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
The Chair expressed concern that there was not yet a properly constituted 
Health and Wellbeing Board for the Borough, despite the requirement for a 
statutory board to have been established as from 1 April 2013.  This put 
Government funding in jeopardy and must be addressed.  She intended to 
write to Deborah Cohen to get full details of the situation. 
 
The Chair added that she had previously raised the matter with Mayor 
Rahman, who had not responded, as he would have to initiate the process of 
establishing a formal board.  She had spoken on the matter with Chief 
Officers and had also brought up the issue at Cabinet and was now asking 
Officers to seek advice on how arrangements for the board might be 
implemented if the Mayor would not proceed. 
 
The Chair felt that the Panel should be provided with Health and Wellbeing 
Board agendas and asked that the Mayor and Cabinet Lead Member be 
invited to attend the next meeting of the Panel to discuss the matter, if it 
remains unresolved by that time 
 
Action by: 
Deborah Cohen, Service Head Commissioning & Strategy   
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.35 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair, Councillor Rachael Saunders 
Health Scrutiny Panel 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 19/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

ROOM C1, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Rachael Saunders (Chair) 
 
Councillor Lesley Pavitt 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
Nil 
  
 
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
David Burbridge – (Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Representative) 

 
Guests Present: 
Abdirashid – (Mind in Tower Hamlets & Newham) 
Sharon Hammond – (Mind in Tower Hamlets & Newham) 
Colsum Akanjee – (Mind in Tower Hamlets & Newham) 
Helen Forster – (Working Well Trust) 
Hassan Nahman – (Working Well Trust) 
John Stevens – Working Well Trust) 
Martin Bould – (Tower Hamlets Clinical Commissioning Group) 
Jackie Applebee – (GP Representative, Local Medical Committee) 

 
Officers Present: 
 
Tahir Alam – (Strategy Policy & Performance Officer, Chief 

Executive's ) 
Sarah Barr – (Senior Strategy Policy and Performance Officer, 

Corporate Strategy and Equality Service, Chief 
Executive's) 

Paul Iggulden – (Associate Director of Public Health) 
 

Alan Ingram – (Democratic Services) 
 
 

COUNCILLOR RACHAEL SAUNDERS (CHAIR), IN THE CHAIR 
 
It was noted that the meeting was inquorate and would proceed on an 
informal basis, subject to confirmation of any actions proposed at the next 
Panel meeting. 
 

Page 11



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 19/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor David Egdar, 
for whom Councillor Lesley Pavitt deputised, and Dr Amjad Rahi, Co-opted 
Member. 
 
NOTE: Councillor Zenith Rahman later contacted Committee Services to say 
that she had been unable to attend due to illness. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
Consideration of the unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 
3 September 2013 was deferred, in view of the inquorate meeting. 
  
 

4. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

4.1 Barts Health: Progress Update on Outpatients  
 
Sarah Barr, Senior Strategy, Policy and Performance Officer introduced the 
report which provided an update on performance for out patients at Barts NHS 
Trust, as previously requested by Councillor Lesley Pavitt on behalf of the 
Scrutiny Panel, concerning waiting times and appointment letters. 
 
Ms Barr added that there was now a process for Scrutiny Panel Members to 
be able to take forward health services concerns and complaints raised by 
residents and share these with Barts, who would then provide information 
about the outcome.   A form was available to record the resident’s concerns 
and confirming they were prepared for the information to be shared with 
Members. 
 
The Chair expressed the view that this should be extended to all Members of 
the Council, not just the Panel, for casework purposes and discussions were 
needed with John Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services, on how this 
might be progressed. 
 
Action by:  Sarah Barr (Senior Strategy, Policy and Performance Officer) 
 
 

5. LIFE COURSE - MIDDLE AGE  
 

5.1 Public Health Life Course - Middle Age 40-64 Years  
 
Paul Iggulden, Associate Director of Public Health, introduced the 
presentation, as included in the previously circulated agenda, speaking on 

Page 12



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 19/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

measures to improve the health of middle-aged people; priorities and 
challenges; good practice in LBTH. 
 
Mr Iggulden indicated that the 40-64 year old group in the Borough was 
relatively small, given that the largest population group was 20-39 year old, 
but this would increase significantly to 101,000 by 2020/21, as the 
Bangladeshi population grew older.  He stated that he would report to a future 
meeting on how age and ethnic bands would interact. 
 
He added that people in the 40-64 year bracket in Tower Hamlets were more 
than twice as likely to report health problems as the national average and 
healthy life expectancy was considerably lower than the actual average life 
span for men and women.  Challenges in this regard related to diabetes, high 
premature deaths from cardio-vascular disease and cancer, tuberculosis and 
high mental health admissions.  There was a general high behavioural risk 
element arising from smoking, poor nutrition, low physical exercise and heavy 
drinking.  Diabetes rates rose from a generally massive ramp up in obesity in 
middle age.  It was necessary to promote healthy lifestyles to address these 
issues by early intervention and it was important to recognise the good work 
going on in the Primary Care sector to develop care packages.  However, 
work must continue to ensure that local health and social care services could 
meet the needs of the population. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Iggulden for his presentation and indicated that there 
would be an opportunity to put questions after the other presentations were 
heard.   
 

6. LIFE COURSE - MIDDLE AGE: MENTAL HEALTH  
 

6.1 CCG - Middle Age Life Course - Low Level Mental Health  (TO FOLLOW)  
 
Martin Bould of the Tower Hamlets Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
introduced the presentation as contained in the previously circulated 
supplemental agenda.  He indicated that one in four people would experience 
a mental health problem at some point in their lifetime and one in six adults 
had a mental health problem at any one time. 
 
Mental illness had a profound impact on health, relationships, educational and 
employment outcomes and accounted for nearly as much morbidity as all 
physical illnesses put together.  It had the same effect on life-expectancy as 
smoking and more than obesity, with people suffering a serious mental illness 
dying on average 20 years earlier than the general population.  Depression 
affected 10% of people who suffered strokes and remained high for 10 years 
afterwards.  One in three women who were subject to domestic violence 
experienced depression.  The incidence of depression in Tower Hamlets was 
higher than the average population and it tended to be harder for these 
people to recover and move away from Benefits and anti-depressants. 
 
Mr Bould indicated that most mental health data were not broken down to 
reflect middle age specifically but the population in Tower Hamlets always 

Page 13



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 19/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

showed high risk factors and their were a large number of carers who  could 
be associated with middle age.  
 
The Chair made the point that Tower Hamlets Social Services performance 
monitoring tended to miss carers’ assessment targets and asked how 
services could be adapted to support families.  Mr Bould replied that care 
support was being re-commissioned for individual carers and the Council 
would commission carers for dementia support.  Paul Iggulden added that a 
Carers’ Health Check was being piloted and evaluated to consider how the 
service might be improved and it had been found that better links were 
needed with Primary Care so that carers could be identified and given 
support.  The Chair stated that she had visited many households who had 
complained of overcrowding and it was evident that at least one parent there 
was mentally distressed – there was an obvious connotation with mental 
health. 
 
In response to queries from David Burbridge, Co-opted Member, Mr Bould 
stated that the Council and CCG had published a joint strategy and worked as 
closely as possible but so many services were involved that there was no 
single information source that clearly identified who were overall service 
providers.  This would be formulated in the Commissioning Plan.  There were 
no plans to de-commission services but resources had to be directed to 
achieve the best possible outcome. 
 
Sarah Barr commented that there tended to be low referrals of mental illness 
from the Bengali community and asked if there had been any analysis of this.  
Mr Bould stated that the uptake across ethnic groups was not uniform and it 
would be necessary to think about facilitating access to systems and to 
engage more with communities. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Bould for his presentation.      
 

6.2 MIND in Tower Hamlets and Newham (MITHN): Wellbeing, Support and 
Recovery  
 
Abdirashid, Colsum Akanjee and Sharon Hammond of Mind in Tower Hamlets 
and Newham (MITHN) spoke in connection with the presentation contained in 
the previously circulated agenda. 
 
MITHN was a registered charity that provided a wide range of support 
services to people from the ages of 18-65 years with mental health needs who 
lived in both Boroughs.  Services were provided which were supportive, 
recovery focused, proactive and encouraged independence, enabling people 
to be active participants in the wider community.   
 
Abdirashid stated that a key objective was to give people choice and control 
over their lives and in April 2012 had become involved with Time to Change 
which had been adopted by the Council.  He indicated that the Bangladeshi 
and Somali communities feared the stigma of mental illness and as a result 
tended to avoid referrals until people needed primary or possibly secondary 
care by the time MITHN became involved.   

Page 14



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 19/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board, Councils and MITHN had all signed the 
Time to Change pledge and others in the voluntary sector had done likewise.  
This needed to be brought together and co-ordinated. MITHN had strong 
referral systems in place and it was necessary to establish links with other 
services and go into the community.   
 
Colsum Akanjee described the various therapies that MITHN made available 
and commented that she co-ordinated mental health support teams that 
helped people in their homes.  She also described the pathway for mental 
health referrals that supported people from initial assessment, hopefully 
through to paid employment. 
 
Sharon Hammond explained how individuals’ progress was measured and 
commented on the range of activities that were made available to help people.  
A Wellbeing Service had been in place since April 2013 and this provided the 
first active point of contacts, enabled assessments and referrals to the mental 
health team, who offered more help than counselling alone.  More referrals 
were now being received from GP services and young people were obtaining 
access to services.  In the past six months, 10 people had been supported 
into paid employment and more into voluntary work. 
 
Abdirashid stated that MITHN was working with Time to Change to challenge 
mental health stigma and discrimination and detailed how work was 
undertaken with a wide range of organisations, from schools to the Canary 
Wharf Corporation, with a view to discussing mental illness and developing 
mindful employers.  Tower Hamlets Homes was providing mental health first 
aiders and counselling services for staff.    
 
A current source of problems was benefits issues, with increased numbers of 
people becoming stressed about housing benefit levels and the fear of 
homelessness.  There should be more investment in employment services.  
There were high levels of unemployment in Tower Hamlets and local women 
who often had very low educational abilities were expected to apply for 15 
jobs a week to maintain Jobseeker’s Allowance.  People with long term 
unemployment and mental problems could not be expected to manage to get 
back into work within a few months. 
 
The Chair thanked the MITHN representative for their presentation. 
   
 

6.3 Working Well Trust - Workplace Mental Health (Verbal Presentation)  
 
The Chair welcomed Helen Forster, John Stevens and Hassan Nahman of the 
Working Well Trust (WWT) who had attended the meeting to make a verbal 
presentation. 
 
John Stevens stated that WWT had been operating since 2007 with the remit 
of helping into employment Tower Hamlets residents with mental health 
issues, with the assistance of four staff who were employment specialists.  
WWT workers were fully integrated into the mental health system in the 

Page 15



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 19/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

Borough and had contacts in all mental health teams, with whom they spent 
two days a week.  The aim of WWT was not just about success in achieving 
employment, as the intention was also to effect a change in individuals’ 
perception of themselves as normalised and increase self confidence to 
pursue everyday activities, i.e. “soft outcomes”.  Each specialist had 30 clients 
who all had full-time access to the respective worker.  A highly personalised 
service was provided, which helped with: 

• Preparing people to be able to access employment through competitive 
interview. 

• Ensuring a barrier free approach and ensuring that suggested jobs met 
with clients’ preferences. 

• Providing pre-employment training quickly for suitable jobs. 

• Giving unlimited time to clients.  Those with a mild mental health 
condition might be helped into employment in eight months or so, while 
more serious conditions might require up to four years assistance.  

 
Mr Stevens commented that WWT was funded by NHS Tower Hamlets and 
had helped 58 people into work this year.  However, more resources would be 
needed before more referrals could be accepted. 
 
Helen Forster spoke regarding work on improving access to employment for 
clients and described measures on how people could reach their own 
assessment of their progress in achieving soft outcomes. 
 
Hassan Nahman added that another aim of WWT was to help people with job 
retention.  Historically there had been much focus in helping people into 
employment but emphasis had shifted over the last 10 years to making sure 
that people already in employment could keep their jobs if they were affected 
by stress or mental illness that might trigger sickness or disciplinary 
procedures.  WWT supported people who deemed that their jobs could be at 
risk due to their mental condition.  In this connection, they approached 
employers as advocates and advisers, to challenge the view that a mental 
condition had to be cured before there could be personal improvement and on 
the basis that diagnosis of a mental illness was not an indication of 
unemployability.  WWT could help prevent the escalation of problems while a 
person was employed and avoid people feeling that they had to resign. 
 
Mr Nahman continued that a key principle of job retention was early 
intervention to avoid dismissals and this was critical for achieving a positive 
outcome.  WWT was concerned with developing good practice and 
awareness in the workplace and explaining mental conditions to employers to 
de-stigmatise such matters.  They also focused on the Equality Act and 
Health and Safety at Work Act to encourage the viewpoint that people should 
be helped to stay in work through workplace adjustments and the promotion 
of cultural and attitudinal changes to allow a flexible approach.  This could 
take a minimum of three months to achieve and was often easier to effect in 
larger firms that had more resources. 
 
Conclusions/Outcomes 
 

Page 16



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 19/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

The Chair then invited questions from those present and the following 
emerged: 
 
 (1) Sarah Barr made further reference to the matter of low referrals regarding 
mental health problems from the Bangladeshi community.  The view was 
expressed by those present that the Bangladeshi and Somali communities 
considered mental health problems to carry a stigma and were reluctant to 
admit this outside of the family. 

 
The meeting agreed that the Public Health Service be asked to 
undertake research on this. 
 
Action by: Sarah Barr (Senior Strategy, Policy and Performance Officer) 

 
(2) Helen Forster of Working Well Trust agreed to provide the Chair, HSP 
and relevant officers with the mechanisms that are used to monitor and 
assess “soft” outcomes (e.g. improvements in confidence, self esteem and 
seeing themselves as normalised).  WWT “hard” outcomes relate to numbers 
of people who are helped into employment. 
 
(3) The Chair stated that recommendations would need to be developed 
around the themes of: 

§ Resilience in the family and community – support and access to mental 
health services.  Support was needed for young people who saw 
involvement with MIND and other services as a personal stigma.  
Preventative work with schools is needed. Also problems with 20-30 
year old Bangladeshis having mental health issues plus drug or alcohol 
abuse, living at home, whose elderly parents may be subject to abuse.  
Helen Forster of WWT to provide the Chair with estimated figures 
of such families. 

§ Support is needed for carers of mentally ill individuals. 
§ Tackling stigma. The issue of communities stigmatising mental illness 

which hampers individuals seeking access to health services.  Also 
research is needed into the religious aspect of Bangladeshi and Somali 
communities’ attitudes to mental illness.  Work will need to be 
undertaken with faith groups and Idea Stores to engage with the 
communities to reduce stigma. 

§ Early intervention to help people who may be suffering mental illness 
while in employment, to help them keep their jobs.  This includes 
encouraging workplace adjustments by employers to avoid undue use 
of sickness absence/disciplinary procedures. Help employers make 
cultural and attitudinal changes to accommodate employees with 
mental health problems.  Ensure that these changes permeate and are 
understood at all levels of the organisation.  There is much evidence to 
show that being in employment is beneficial for both mental and 
physical wellbeing.  Employment assistance should figure on 
everyone’s agenda due to the sheer numbers of people who cannot get 
into work and are adversely affected by the new Benefits regime.  
Helen Forster of WWT to provide Sarah Barr/Tahir Alam with 
details of the work of Bangladeshi Mental Health Forum and 
known community barriers. 

Page 17



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 19/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

 
(4) There is such an overlap of services for vulnerable and marginalised 
groups that a partnership approach must be adopted to pull resources 
together to ensure accessibility and extend help to other individuals – it was 
felt that the numbers currently receiving assistance were just the tip of the 
iceberg.  The Chair would be contacting Deborah Cohen to discuss 
formulation of partnerships. 
 
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
 

7.1 North East London Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
Sarah Barr reported that the next JOSC meeting would be held next day and 
agenda items included a financial report from Barts NHS Trust and the 
reorganisation of cardiovascular services.  She indicated that anyone wishing 
to have particular matters discussed should email details to the Chair or her 
and/or Tahir Alam. 
 
It was agreed that it was necessary at the meeting to flag up obligations that 
had been agreed to during the consultation period, as these had to be 
monitored to ensure they were complied with.  Details should also be 
requested of evidence to justify the reconfiguration of services (e.g. any 
possible moves to stop emergency services at Newham Hospital).   
 
Action by: Sarah Barr (Senior Strategy, Policy and Performance Officer) 
 
 

7.2 Health and Wellbeing Board Status 
 
The Chair commented that the Board had still not been formally constituted 
and meetings were not, therefore, in the public domain.  This also meant that 
funding available could not be obtained. 
 
The Panel agreed to write formally to the Mayor pointing out that it is essential 
that the Health & Wellbeing Board should be formally constituted as a 
statutory body to allow it to function properly and to ensure that funding is not 
lost.  
 
Action by: Councillor Rachael Saunders, Chair of Health Scrutiny Panel  
 
  

The meeting ended at 8.50 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 

Chair, Councillor Rachael Saunders 
Health Scrutiny Panel 

Page 18



Committee 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

Date 
 
28 January 2014 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report No. 
 
 

Reports of:  
 
HealthWatch Feedback from inspections 
and progress 
 
Presenting Officers:  
 
Dianne Barham  
 

Title:       
 
HealthWatch: Summary Feedback from 
Barts Health         
 
 
Ward(s) affected:  
 
All  
 

 
 

1. Summary 
 

Summary from HealthWatch in relation to feedback from patients on their experiences of 
Barts Health services.  
 
 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
Comments and any questions on service delivery  

Page 19

Agenda Item 3.2



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Current  Periodmovement 14.82%  

Reportweeks 13 Ratingsreceived 14137 Weeklyaverage 1087 WebsiteHits 45376 

Yearto date 

Reportweeks 

 

52 

 

Ratingsreceived 

 

95384 

 

Weeklyaverage 

 

1834 

 

WebsiteHits 

 

198578 

GPServices  OpticiansServices  PharmaciesServices  NursingHomes  

Periodmovement 12.75% Periodmovement 13.52% Periodmovement 15.24% Periodmovement 29.02% 

Ratingsreceived 3064 Ratingsreceived 1090 Ratingsreceived 2036 Ratingsreceived 413 

ReceivedYTD 24023 ReceivedYTD 8063 ReceivedYTD 13362 ReceivedYTD 1423 

Averagerating 2.89 Averagerating 3.00 Averagerating 3.20 Averagerating 2.83 

HomeCareProviders  CareHomes  Dentist  SocialCareServices  

Periodmovement 18.93% Periodmovement 17.25% Periodmovement 21.67% Periodmovement 23.15% 

Ratingsreceived 106 Ratingsreceived 823 Ratingsreceived 1511 Ratingsreceived 341 

ReceivedYTD 560 ReceivedYTD 4772 ReceivedYTD 6974 ReceivedYTD 1473 

Averagerating 2.87 Averagerating 2.60 Averagerating 2.83 Averagerating 2.87 

A&EWalkinCentre  MentalHealthServices  DayCareCentres  Hospital  

Periodmovement 12.09% Periodmovement 26.87% Periodmovement 4.31% Periodmovement 14.26% 

Ratingsreceived 1021 Ratingsreceived 104 Ratingsreceived 28 Ratingsreceived 3600 

ReceivedYTD 8446 ReceivedYTD 387 ReceivedYTD 649 ReceivedYTD 25252 

Averagerating 3.13 Averagerating 3.47 Averagerating 2.87 Averagerating 2.86 

 

 

 

Dashboard 

Rate OurService-July2013toSeptember2013 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

AverageRating ScorebySector Type 
July1st2011toAugust31st2011 

RatingsbySector 
 

 

2.89     3.00     
3.20     

2.83     2.87 

 

 

2.60 

 

2.83     2.88     
3.13 

 

3.47 

 

2.87     2.86

Page 21



 

 

Summary of Patient Feedback from Barts Health 
Sept 2012-October 2013 

 

1. Background 
 
1.1 This report is based on the analyses of patient feedback from: 

• four Enter and View visits undertaken by Healthwatch members over 
October and September 2013 to: 
1. Ambrose King Centre (Sexual Health) Royal London Hospital  
2. Renal Unit Royal London Hospital: Outpatients, Haemodialysis Unit 

and Inpatient – Renal Transplant Ward (9F) 
3. Fracture Clinic (Outpatients) Royal London Hospital  
4. Rahere Ward (Cancer) St Barts Hospital  

• 900 comments collected between September 2012 and October 2013 
from local patients at community events, online on the Healthwatch 
website and Rate Our Service, workshops and phone feedback and 
interviews.  

2. What is good? 
 
2.1  Generally patient comments present a very positive view of the clinical care 

provided at the Royal London Hospital.   
 
“I think doctors do their jobs well I always understand what they say and I 
feel as if they really care for me in a special way. They are friendly and 
loyal, and I feel I get excellent service therefore I’m very happy with the 
doctors.” 
 

“I have to mention how very impressed I was with the professionalism and 
knowledge of the doctors and nurses at the new Royal London hospital. .. 
Overall it was a top service I received from them and I was very pleased.” 

 
2.2  Things that were mentioned when describing a good service were: 

• seeing the same consultant 

• seeing the senior consultant that you asked for at least once 

• having the right test results when you see the consultant 

• having enough information and time to ask questions 

• being seen on time, given further advice and being kept updated 

• people being friendly, smiling, taking the time to say hello or welcome you 

• getting an appointment straight away 

• giving advice in a non judgmental 
 

“I have a regular consultant that I see.  He is brilliant.  He talks and he 
listens and he's helped get my condition stable.” 

 
2.3 Particular areas and actions that received a number of positive comments 
were:  

• Children’s services both A&E and general. 

• A&E service - but not the waiting times. People feel that they are given a 
more thorough examination at the hospital by more specialist doctors.  

• The stroke team and cardiology teams although patients also mentioned 
problems on discharge and appointments. 

Page 22



 

 

• Text reminders about appointments and being able to book appointments 
online. 

• Hospital cleanliness and the quality of rooms  
 

“My neighbour had gynaecological surgery at the Royal London six or seven 
weeks ago and was at her third Pilate’s class! Nurses were pushed but were 
very good.  They put her in a single room across from the nurses’ station as 
she was probably the oldest patient on the ward.  She felt the care was very 
good and liked having a single room.” 

 

3. Top 10 main concerns from Tower Hamlets re Barts Health 
services  

 
3.1 The most common concerns raised by patients were:  

1. Administration and referral processes 
2. Shortage of nursing staff  
3. Maternity – aftercare and discharge  
4. Waiting times in A&E 
5. Food 
6. Environment  
7. Slow and poor discharge processes 
8. Hospital Transport 
9. Incontinence service 
10. Complaints processes 

 

4. Administration and referral processes 
 
4.1 The problem raised by the largest number of patients was not the quality of 

clinical care but the administrative systems around appointments. This 
included poor referral processes from the GP, long waiting lists/times to get 
an appointment, poor administrative processes (letters late, wrong 
appointment times, wrong phone numbers, wrong patient, wrong location) 
and appointments frequently being postponed.  

 
“You receive a letter that tells you to phone a number within five days to 
make an appointment.  You can’t get through on the phone or you get 
through and they say you’re in queue.  Then it’s “you are number five in 
the queue, you are number four in the queue . . .” Somebody finally 
answers and asks you what department you want and then says that this is 
the wrong department. My GP phoned the consultants clinic and they said 
that the clinic was full for weeks. He phoned again an hour later and was 
told the list was open again. . . .. My doctor referred me to the foot clinic 
they saw me once and told me they will call me for another appointment 
however it has been over three months and I haven't heard since. But I did 
find the foot clinic to have a very good service.  Doctor was very helpful 
and he knew what he was talking about and I was satisfied with care.” 

 
4.2  From a patient’s perspective the current systems couldn’t be further away 

from being patient centred. People feel that they are not being given fair 
access to appointments and that the system is the problem. Many feel that 
it is incumbent on them to try and navigate through a complicated system, 
often needing to complain to get results. This can have a very detrimental 
impact on their health and their recovery.  

Page 23



 

 

 
“I’ve not been here for a while as I have spent the last two years trying to 
get an appointment for someone to resolve my lower back problems - the 
only reason why I was seen today was because I went through the 
Complaints’ Department. I had my surgery in August 2011 and was seen six 
weeks later by the Physiotherapy Department (Royal London Hospital) and 
was told that I will receive an appointment at the Pain Clinic at Mile End 
Hospital. I waited for a couple of weeks, but never received an 
appointment. I tried to chase-up my appointment, just to be told that I 
missed it (this bearing in minded I never received the appointment letter in 
the first place). So far it’s been a bit of a nightmare to get an 
appointment...” 

 
4.3  This frustration is compounded further by having to wait long periods when 

you actually do make it to the relevant clinic for your appointment.   
 

“Few months ago I went for my outpatient appointment in cardiology 
department at RLH for 3 o’clock appointment but was seen at 5pm. No one 
came out to say why the appointment was running late. Due to my lack of 
confidence I did not show my frustration.” 

 
4.4 Then often the consultant doesn’t have the right test results when you are 

finally seen or they explain it’s an exploratory appointment and you’ll have 
to come back and see another person and the whole appointments process 
nightmare starts over again. People are waiting years for something that 
could be sorted in a couple of months if the administration systems worked 
effectively. This often compounds illness and injury and leads to more 
expensive treatment further down the line. It is surely also a massive waste 
of resources as tests are often repeated unnecessarily as appointment are 
arranged at the wrong times. 

 
4.5 One suggestion from a patient was that certain treatments may not need to 

be undertaken in hospital and should be made available more in the 
community. 

 
“I had an appointment at Therapies Outpatients Department, Barts 
Musculosketal Therapies. It had taken four months to get the appointment 
and it was then for in a month’s time. I had had a hip replacement eight 
months ago. The letter said that the appointment was at 9.15.  When I got 
there (which it is difficult to get anywhere that time of the morning) the 
receptionist told me that the computer said my appointment was at 9.45.  I 
showed her the letter with 9.15 on it but she didn't seem to care. The 
doctor or physio said I had to come and do exercises for six weeks. I said 
why don't you just show me the exercises I have to do and I'll do them at 
home. I don't want to have to travel in every week when I could just as 
easily do them at home. He said that was fine and did some stick figure 
drawings of exercises that I could do at home. Why don't they do that for 
more people?  It would free up the waiting lists and people would get seen 
when they need to and not 5 or 6 months later. Why couldn't they just go 
to their local gym and do it.” 

 
 

5. Perceived shortage of nursing staff  
 

Page 24



 

 

5.1 We received far fewer comments this year regarding the poor attitude of 
nursing staff compared to previous years. Comments tend to now focus on a 
perceived shortage of nursing staff on the wards.   

 
5.2  The perception from many patients is that there is inadequate staff in a lot 

of areas and that there is a problem with bank staff and supply nurses. 
 

“I feel that 7F is short of staff and they always take on additional agency 
staff; I am not happy with the agency staff as it seems like they don’t know 
what they are doing (i.e. don’t know how to put on a medicine pack on my 
son)...agency staff should be trained properly before they’re sent to 
specialised wards...when I see agency staff I don’t ask for their help as I 
don’t feel reassured that they can do their job properly.” 
 
“The day after my operation I was high on morphine, firstly I didn’t know 
where the alarm was and when I did find it I couldn’t get to it. I couldn’t 
see the nurse and nobody came in. In the end I called my family on my 
mobile phone to get a nurse to come and see me. The staff are very helpful 
though” 
 
“..due to staff shortages sometimes I have not been given my dinner as I 
have been unable to walk to get my dinner from the ward corridor.” 

 
5.3 We understand the new ward layouts can leave patients with the perception 

that there are fewer nurses even if nursing levels have remained the same.  
However it is true that nurses are not able to keep an eye on as many 
patients as they were in the old wards and they are less visible to patients. 
This has the potential to leave patients feeling isolated which leads to them 
feeling unsafe and increases anxiety. You lose the sense that nurses are 
always around and patients feel insecure.  

 
5.4  This also leads to the nurses being overworked which leads to them 

appearing or being rude and abrupt to patients who would just like a bit of 
reassurance. It also leads to a deterioration of staff moral and there is a 
sense that in some wards good staff are leaving.  

 
 “You can’t complain about a nurse who is looking after about seven 

patients all on her own. You just have to give them credit for their hard 
work and effort.” 

 
5.5  We also picked up comments about patients feeling that the wards were 

short staffed at night and at weekends.  
 
5.6 The financial review is suggesting nurse to patient ratios at one nurse to 

seven patients.  It is clear that patients in the majority of cases do not feel 
that this will provide them with the compassionate as opposed to clinical 
care they would desire. We also feel that this will impact on patient safety.  

 
 

6. Maternity Services  
 
6.1 Generally mothers are very positive about the surroundings of the new 

maternity wards and feel that the Royal London maternity services have 

Page 25



 

 

improved. We received very few negative comments about the care during 
labour.  

 
“I gave birth at the old Royal London hospital and the service was really 
good. The support from the midwife at the hospital was wonderful and I 
also got support when I went home as they came to visit me at home.” 

 
6.2 The most common negative theme from mothers related again to a sense 

that there were insufficient staff particularly in relation to aftercare.  
 

“I felt that the nurses where working very hard to keep every patient 
happy. It’s not an easy job so I have to give them credit”. 

  
“The staff seem very busy there and if you call them for their assistance 
they would say ‘give me two minutes’ and it will take two hours for them 
to return.” 

 
6.3 Staff shortages may also go some way to explaining some of the issues 

relating to poor discharge that we picked up. 
  

“I waited four days to be discharged from the hospital and there was 
nothing wrong with me.” 

 
“I was discharged by a student nurse . . .  and she also gave me all my files 
that the hospital should’ve kept.  I even had to call a community nurse as 
no midwife or nurse checked me before or after my birth.” 

 
“The new Royal London hospital lost my files which meant according to 
their system my baby wasn’t born and I was forced to stay in the hospital 
for an extra night.  My files were later found in the triage ward and I 
couldn’t wait to leave the hospital as I wasn’t getting the support I needed 
there.” 

 
“After I had my baby I was asked to leave the room, discharged home very 
quickly as they needed the room for another patient. I had to sit in the 
triage corridor with my suitcase, baby on my lap, on a plastic chair 
surrounded by moaning women until my husband came to pick us up.” 

 
6.4 We are still picking up issues about a different quality of midwifery care 

being provided to non-English speakers.  
 

“When I gave birth at the Royal London hospital the staff thought I 
couldn’t speak English and were very rude to me. But when I spoke up for 
myself the staff realised that I could speak English and their behaviour 
towards me changed. The staff became a lot friendlier and treated me 
well. I know they treat patients who cannot speak English badly and this is 
really bad and unfair treatment” 

 
 

7. Waiting times in A&E 
 
7.1 Patients are very positive about A&E services at the Royal London. “It’s 

quicker to go to A&E and you seem to get a proper assessment and tests 
there and then.”There is difficulty getting appointments at some GPs and 

Page 26



 

 

people feel the quality of assessment is not always good.  “You are assessed 
better at A&E”. 

 
7.2 However waiting times are a major issue especially for people who are in 

pain. “I had to wait about 3-4 hours and I was in a lot of pain therefore, 
wanted to be seen as soon as possible but I had to wait.” One patient 
mentioned being delayed for six hours at the hospital A&E for a sickle cell 
attack resulting in premature labour of her son.  

 
7.3 People with long-term conditions felt they should have more consideration 

for people who may be frequent visitors “... more sympathetic staff at A+E 
to hear patient’s needs who have multiple illnesses and need more care”.  
And that there should be come mechanism to fast track frequent visitors  
“every time my son is not well he has to be readmitted as a inpatient to 
7F, however in order to readmit him we have to always go through A&E, we 
can’t come direct to the ward. And every time we go to A&E they ask the 
same questions again and do all the tests again; this is very frustrating for 
us, on one occasion there was a two day gap between discharge and 
readmission and we had to go through the whole A&E process...why can’t 
they just let us go to the ward?..This process usually is very stressful to my 
son.” 

 
 

8. Food 
 
8.1 There are mixed views about the food provided. Some patients commented 

that they do not like the food due to blandness of taste and lack of variety 
on the menu and other patients feel patients should not expect too much 
from a hospital, therefore the standard is ok and at least you are given a 
choice. 

 
8.2 In some areas it was not so much about the quality of food but about: 

• not enough food,  

• food being cold when it arrived,  

• food running out before it reaches patients, and 

• patients not being given enough time to eat or not being given enough 
help to eat with food being taken away without being touched.  

 
8.3 Not all patients have family to bring in extra food and there is a sense that 

this is necessary.  
 

“After my operation I was on a ward for seven days, on three of the days I 
didn’t get the food that I ordered, on one day I got no food at all apart 
from sandwiches, and I certainly don’t want cold food when I’m in hospital. 
Out of the seven days I was on ward, only on three of those days I got the 
food I ordered, and even then it really wasn’t very nice.” 
 
“The food is awful, not appetising and bland. The halal food is always 
curry. Not all Muslims are south Asian and I don’t like the curry.” 

 

9 Discharge  
 
9.1 Patients being discharged when they or their family felt it was too early or 

before appropriate care packages were in place 

Page 27



 

 

 
“It seems hospitals want to discharge patients quickly...they discharged my 
father and he was not well enough to be discharged...although we 
highlighted that he was not feeling better, they insisted on discharging 
him... so we took my father home, but he could not cope due to the pain, 
we took him to the doctors and the doctor said that he should return to the 
hospital – this whole situation could have been avoided if the hospital 
doctors decided that he was not ready for discharge- it seems once they 
make their minds up, the decision has to stick!!” 

 
9.2 Patients self discharging because of the noise, temperature on the ward and 

lack of air.  
 

9.3 We have heard of several patients self discharging.  One was in the 
cardiovascular ward, they left because it was very noisy with all the 
monitoring equipment and they couldn’t get any sleep.  Other people have 
left because of the temperature on the wards being too hot and stuffy and 
they felt as if they couldn’t get any air. This seems to be a fairly significant 
safe guarding issue as there is obviously a reason that they are in hospital in 
the first place and to get up and leave could, one would think, have 
potentially life threatening consequences. We have raised this issue with 
the Chief Nurse and understand that an audit of the number of patients self 
discharging is currently taking place and we will receive a copy of the audit.  

 
9.4 Patients having to wait a long time to be discharged on the day they were 

leaving and being left to wait in the discharge lounge while prescriptions 
were being filled.  

 
“My mother was discharged in the morning but had to sit around and wait 
all day until 12 at night for her prescription to be filled.” 

 

10. Incontinence service  
 

10.1 Over the past 12 months we have picked up issues with the adult 
incontinence service.  

 
“My mother had a very bad experience with district nurses and the 
Incontinence service once discharged from hospital- my mother was without 
incontinence pads (& correct size pads) for almost two months due to 
problems of communication between the District Nurse and the 
Incontinence service . . . the nurse was blaming the incontinence service 
for this mistake and the incontinence service blamed the nurse for this 
mistake. Currently we are still waiting for the incontinence pads for the 
last two months we have been borrowing from other people.”  
 
“Getting through to the incontinence service is very difficult as no one 
answers the phone, it seems only 10% of calls are answered and if you leave 
a voicemail it takes them two days to get back to you- based on my 
experience I would say the incontinence service is not that good for the 
reasons that is difficult to access the service and once you get through no 
one can be held accountable for their actions/ lack of actions; it’s very 
frustrating!!” 

 
 

Page 28



 

 

11. Hospital Transport 
 
11.1 We continue to receive many comments about the reliability and lateness of 

the patient transport service. “Hospital patient transport is not reliable, 
sometimes they come early, sometimes they come late, but they never 
arrive on time...” 

 
 “I often have to wait about 55 minutes for the driver to come and pick me 

up after leaving the ward. However I do think the drivers are very helpful, 
and always help me get in and out of the car. Getting to the hospital is not 
as bad, as the drivers often turn up on time but the problem occurs when 
leaving the hospital.” 

 
 “Patient transport is generally good; I use this service regularly and I am 

grateful I am offered the service... however they are always late by an 
hour from the appointment time given to you, but I can understand why 
they are always late they have to pick up so many people along the 
way...the delay by patient transport also delays your appointment time at 
the hospital, as you get seen later than the time given to you...it would 
also be useful if patient transport can pick you up straight away after a 
hospital appointment- you normally have to wait an hour...and whilst you 
are waiting no one attends to you- it would be nice to get a cup of tea!!” 

 
 

12. Environment issues 
 

12.1 Most people are very complementary about the new hospital mentioning it 
is clean, modern and spacious. But there are a number of issues frequently 
raised:  

• Layout is complicated, there needs to be better signs to direct 
patients.  

• Lifts - People find them hard to use and confusing 

• Temperature – some wards are hot (High dependency Unit) and some 
are freezing from a patient perspective (Renal Outpatients)  

• Lack of air – not being able to open the windows makes it very stuffy 
and sometimes stifling 

• Noise – monitoring equipment makes a lot of noise at night making it 
difficult to sleep.  

 

13. Complaints and PALS procedures 
 
13.1 Patients have complained to Healthwatch Tower Hamlets about: 

• difficulty finding out the complaints procedure and who to contact to 
make a complaint 

• the timeframe for responding to complaints?  

• procedure being too complicated, hard to navigate through and too long 
 
 
13.2 PALS 
 
13.3 Recently we received concerns that patients are finding it difficult to access 

the PALs service i.e. patients are telling us that they find it difficult to get 
through to PALs service on the phone and when they do manage to get hold 

Page 29



 

 

of them they are requested to make an appointment to see them, which can 
take a long time. Patients that have used PALs service in the past have said 
that they prefer the drop in option as it was accessible when they felt 
distressed and needed to see someone quickly for support or advice.    

 
13.4 Also PALs signposting does not appear to be very good, for example patients 

are still turning up to Trust Offices (Mile End Hospital) to see a PALs officer 
and in some cases they have been advised to turn up to Trust Offices on the 
advice of hospital staff both at Royal London and Mile End Hospital.  

13.5  We were notified in July 2013 that Barts set up a call hub that will deal with 
all PALS calls. In addition the drop-in service for the public at The Royal 
London, Whipps Cross and Newham was being replaced by a booked 
appointment system for patients.  Apparently this system would be piloted 
for three months.   

14. Next Steps  

This report along with questions and recommendations will be circulated to: 

• Barts Health Board, Chief Nurse, Deputy Chief Nurse and the relevant 
Clinical Academic Groups 

• Care Quality Commission 

• Tower Hamlets Clinical Commissioning Group 

• Tower Hamlets Health Scrutiny Panel 

• Healthwatch England   
 
Under Section 224 of The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007Healthwatch Tower Hamlets has a statutory right to receive a response to our 
requests for information and recommendations within 20 working days.  
 

 

 

 

Page 30



 
 
 

DRAFT 
Patient Feedback on Barts Health  
Sept 2012-October 2013 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 31



2 

 

 
 

 
Patient Feedback on Barts Health  
Sept 2012-October 2013 
 
 

 
Contents  
1. Summary of 

patient feedback page 2  
2. What is good

 page 2 
3. Top 10 main 

concerns page 3 
4. Next Steps

 page 11 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Enter and View Visit Reports 
a. Royal London 

Hospital - Renal Unit page 11 
b. Royal London 

Hospital - Fracture Clinic page 23 
c. St Bartholomew’s 

Hospital – Oncology  
 (Rahere – 5B Ward)  page 32 
d. Royal London 

Hospital – Sexual Health  
 (Ambrose King Centre) page 40 

 

Page 32



3 

 

 
 
Summary of Patient Feedback  

 

1. Background 
 
1.1 This report is based onthe analyses of patient feedback from: 

• four Enter and View visits undertaken by Healthwatch members over October 
and September 2013 to: 
1. Ambrose King Centre (Sexual Health) Royal London Hospital  
2. Renal Unit Royal London Hospital: Outpatients, Haemodialysis Unit and 

Inpatient – Renal Transplant Ward (9F) 
3. Fracture Clinic (Outpatients) Royal London Hospital  
4. Rahere Ward (Cancer) St Barts Hospital  

• 900 comments collected between September 2012 and October 2013 from local 
patients at community events, online on the Healthwatch website and Rate 
Our Service, workshops and phone feedback and interviews.  

2. What is good? 
 
2.1 Generally patient comments present a very positive view of the clinical care 

provided at the Royal London Hospital.   
 
“I think doctors do their jobs well I always understand what they say and I feel as if 
they really care for me in a special way. They are friendly and loyal, and I feel I get 
excellent service therefore I’m very happy with the doctors.” 
 
“I have to mention how very impressed I was with the professionalism and 
knowledge of the doctors and nurses at the new Royal London hospital. .. Overall it 
was a top service I received from them and I was very pleased.” 

 
2.2 Things that were mentioned when describing a good service were: 

• seeing the same consultant 

• seeing the senior consultant that you asked for at least once 

• having the right test results when you see the consultant 

• having enough information and time to ask questions 

• being seen on time, given further advice and being kept updated 

• people being friendly, smiling, taking the time to say hello or welcome you 

• getting an appointment straight away 

• giving advice in a non judgemental 
 

“I have a regular consultant that I see.  He is brilliant.  He talks and he listens and 
he's helped get my condition stable.” 

 
2.3 Particular areas and actions that received a number of positive comments were: 

• Children’s services both A&E and general. 

• A&E service - but not the waiting times. People feel that they are given a more 
thorough examination at the hospital by more specialist doctors. 

• The stroke team and cardiology teams although patients also mentioned 
problems on discharge and appointments. 

• Text reminders about appointments and being able to book appointments 
online. 

• Hospital cleanliness and the quality of rooms  
 

Page 33



4 

 

“My neighbour had gynaecological surgery at the Royal London six or seven weeks 
ago and was at her third Pilate’s class! Nurses were pushed but were very good.  
They put her in a single room across from the nurses’ station as she was probably 
the oldest patient on the ward.  She felt the care was very good and liked having a 
single room.” 

 
 

3. Top 10 main concerns from Tower Hamlets re Barts Health services 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Administration and referral processes 
 
4.1 The problem raised by the largest number of patients was not the quality of clinical 

care but the administrative systems around appointments. This included poor 
referral processes from the GP, long waiting lists/times to get an appointment, 
poor administrative processes (letters late, wrong appointment times, wrong phone 
numbers, wrong patient, wrong location) and appointmentsfrequently 
beingpostponed.  

 
“You receive a letter that tells you to phone a number within five days to make an 
appointment.  You can’t get through on the phone or you get through and they say 
you’re in queue.  Then it’s “you are number five in the queue, you are number 
four in the queue . . .” Somebody finally answers and asks you what department 
you want and then says that this is the wrong department. My GP phoned the 
consultants clinic and they said that the clinic was full for weeks. He phoned again 
an hour later and was told the list was open again. . . ..My doctor referred me to 
the foot clinic they saw me once and told me they will call me for another 
appointment however it has been over three months and I haven't heard since. But 

 

The most common concerns raised by patients were:  

 

1. Administration and referral processes 

2. Shortage of nursing staff  

3. Maternity – aftercare and discharge  

4. Waiting times in A&E 

5. Food 

6. Environment  

7. Slow and poor discharge processes 

8. Hospital Transport 

9. Incontinence service 

10. Complaints processes 

 

Page 34



5 

 

I did find the foot clinic to have a very good service.  Doctor was very helpful and 
he knew what he was talking about and I was satisfied with care.” 

 
4.2 From a patient’s perspective the current systems couldn’t be further away from 

being patient centred. People feel that they are not being given fair access to 
appointments and that the system is the problem. Many feel that it is incumbent on 
them to try and navigate through a complicated system, often needing to complain 
to get results. This can have a very detrimental impact on their health and their 
recovery.  

 
“I’ve not been here for a while as I have spent the last two years trying to get an 
appointment for someone to resolve my lower back problems - the only reason 
why I was seen today was because I went through the Complaints’ Department. I 
had my surgery in August 2011 and was seen six weeks later by the Physiotherapy 
Department (Royal London Hospital) and was told that I will receive an 
appointment at the Pain Clinic at Mile End Hospital. I waited for a couple of 
weeks, but never received an appointment. I tried to chase-up my appointment, 
just to be told that I missed it (this bearing in minded I never received the 
appointment letter in the first place). So far it’s been a bit of a nightmare to get 
an appointment...” 

 
4.3 This frustration is compounded further by having to wait long periods when you 

actually do make it to the relevant clinic for your appointment.  
 

“Few months ago I went for my outpatient appointment in cardiology department 
at RLH for 3 o’clock appointment but was seen at 5pm. No one came out to say 
why the appointment was running late. Due to my lack of confidence I did not 
show my frustration.” 

 
4.4 Then often the consultant doesn’t have the right test results when you arefinally 

seen or they explain it’s an exploratory appointment and you’ll have to come back 
and see another person and the whole appointments process nightmare starts over 
again. People are waiting years for something that could be sorted in a couple of 
months if the administration systems worked effectively. This often compounds 
illness and injury and leads to more expensive treatment further down the line. It 
is surely also a massive waste of resources as tests are often repeated 
unnecessarily as appointment are arranged at the wrong times. 

 
4.5 One suggestion from a patient was that certain treatments may not need to be 

undertaken in hospital and should be made available more in the community. 
 

“I had an appointment at Therapies Outpatients Department, Barts Musculosketal 
Therapies. It had taken four months to get the appointment and it was then for in 
a month’s time. I had had a hip replacement eight months ago. The letter said 
that the appointment was at 9.15.  When I got there (which it is difficult to get 
anywhere that time of the morning) the receptionist told me that the computer 
said my appointment was at 9.45.  I showed her the letter with 9.15 on it but she 
didn't seem to care. The doctor or physio said I had to come and do exercises for 
six weeks. I said why don't you just show me the exercises I have to do and I'll do 
them at home. I don't want to have to travel in every week when I could just as 
easily do them at home. He said that was fine and did some stick figure drawings 
of exercises that I could do at home. Why don't they do that for more people?  It 
would free up the waiting lists and people would get seen when they need to and 
not 5 or 6 months later. Why couldn't they just go to their local gym and do it.” 

 
Questions 
 

Page 35



6 

 

a) What is the current system for allocating appointments? We would like to know 
how the overall appointment process works once appointments are requested from 
GPs, Consultants, and clinical departments within the hospital. 

b) What is the response timeframe for answering telephone calls, responding to 
letters, sending out appointment letters?  

c) Who decides on the appointment allocation of patients per clinic?  
d) Who decides how many consultants are allocated to each clinic? 
e) What are the options for patients if consultants miss appointments? 
f) Why do consultants run late for appointments?  
g) Why are planned appointments cancelled to cover for emergency appointments?  
h) What are the plans to improve the current administrative and appointments 

process?  Will this be addressed through the move to Electronic Patient Records 
and implementation of a single patient system across all sites (PreView)?  

i) Is there likely to be more rather than less issues with new staff restructuring and 
loss of administrative staff? 

j) Are there any CQUIN’s demands for the appointment system?  
 

 

5. Perceived shortage of nursing staff  
 
5.1 We received far fewer comments this year regarding the poor attitude of nursing 

staff compared to previous years. Comments tend to now focus on a perceived 
shortage of nursing staff on the wards.   

 
5.2  The perception from many patients is that there is inadequate staff in a lot of 

areas and that there is a problem with bank staff and supply nurses. 
 

“I feel that 7F is short of staff and they always take on additional agency staff; I 
am not happy with the agency staff as it seems like they don’t know what they are 
doing (i.e. don’t know how to put on a medicine pack on my son)...agency staff 
should be trained properly before they’re sent to specialised wards...when I see 
agency staff I don’t ask for their help as I don’t feel reassured that they can do 
their job properly.” 
 
“The day after my operation I was high on morphine, firstly I didn’t know where 
the alarm was and when I did find it I couldn’t get to it. I couldn’t see the nurse 
and nobody came in. In the end I called my family on my mobile phone to get a 
nurse to come and see me. The staff are very helpful though” 
 
“..due to staff shortages sometimes I have not been given my dinner as I have 
been unable to walk to get my dinner from the ward corridor.” 

 
5.3 We understand the new ward layouts can leave patients with the perception that 

there are fewer nurses even if nursing levels have remained the same.  However it 
is true that nurses are not able to keep an eye on as many patients as they were in 
the old wards and they are less visible to patients. This has the potential to leave 
patients feeling isolated which leads to them feeling unsafe and increases anxiety. 
You lose the sense that nurses are always around and patients feel insecure.  

 
5.4  This also leads to the nurses being overworked which leads to them appearing or 

being rude and abrupt to patients who would just like a bit of reassurance. It also 
leads to a deterioration of staff moral and there is a sense that in some wards good 
staff are leaving.  

 
 “You can’t complain about a nurse who is looking after about seven patients all on 

her own. You just have to give them credit for their hard work and effort.” 
 

Page 36



7 

 

5.5  We also picked up comments about patients feeling that the wards were short 
staffed at night and at weekends.  

 
5.6 The financial review is suggesting nurse to patient ratios at one nurse to seven 

patients. It is clear that patients in the majority of cases do not feel that this will 
provide them with the compassionate as opposed to clinical care they would 
desire. We also feel that this will impact on patient safety.  

 
Questions 
 

a) Is there any recognition that the new ward layouts require a higher nursing ration 
than the national standard to meet patient safety?  

b) What is the percentage of bank and supply nurses at the moment? 
c) What is the percentage of bank and supply nursesover the weekend? 

 
 
 

6. Maternity Services  
 
6.1 Generally mothers are very positive about the surroundings of the new maternity 

wards and feel that the Royal London maternity services have improved. We 
received very few negative comments about the care during labour.  

 
“I gave birth at the old Royal London hospital and the service was really good. The 
support from the midwife at the hospital was wonderful and I also got support 
when I went home as they came to visit me at home.” 

 
6.2 The most common negative theme from mothers related again to a sense that 

there were insufficient staff particularly in relation to aftercare.  
 

“I felt that the nurses where working very hard to keep every patient happy. It’s 
not an easy job so I have to give them credit”. 

  
“The staff seem very busy there and if you call them for their assistance they 
would say ‘give me two minutes’ and it will take two hours for them to return.” 

 
6.3 Staff shortages may also go some way to explaining some of the issues relating to 

poor discharge that we picked up. 
  

“I waited four days to be discharged from the hospital and there was nothing 
wrong with me.” 

 
“I was discharged by a student nurse . . .  and she also gave me all my files that 
the hospital should’ve kept.  I even had to call a community nurse as no midwife 
or nurse checked me before or after my birth.” 

 
“The new Royal London hospital lost my files which meant according to their 
system my baby wasn’t born and I was forced to stay in the hospital for an extra 
night.  My files were later found in the triage ward and I couldn’t wait to leave 
the hospital as I wasn’t getting the support I needed there.” 

 
“After I had my baby I was asked to leave the room, discharged home very quickly 
as they needed the room for another patient. I had to sit in the triage corridor 
with my suitcase, baby on my lap, on a plastic chair surrounded by moaning 
women until my husband came to pick us up.” 

 

Page 37



8 

 

6.4 We are still picking up issues about a different quality of midwifery care being 
provided to non-English speakers.  

 
“When I gave birth at the Royal London hospital the staff thought I couldn’t speak 
English and were very rude to me. But when I spoke up for myself the staff 
realised that I could speak English and their behaviour towards me changed. The 
staff became a lot friendlier and treated me well. I know they treat patients who 
cannot speak English badly and this is really bad and unfair treatment” 

 
Questions 
 

a) Are the ratios of midwives to mothers and babies at national standards in the 
aftercare wards?  

b) Is there a current shortage of midwives?  Are they able to fill all vacancies?  
 

Page 38



9 

 

 
 

7. Waiting times in A&E 
 
7.1 Patients are very positive about A&E services at the Royal London. “It’s quicker to 

go to A&E and you seem to get a proper assessment and tests there and 
then.”There is difficulty getting appointments at some GPs and people feel the 
quality of assessment is not always good.  “You are assessed better at A&E”. 

 
7.2 However waiting times are a major issue especially for people who are in pain. “I 

had to wait about 3-4 hours and I was in a lot of pain therefore, wanted to be seen 
as soon as possible but I had to wait.” One patient mentioned being delayed for six 
hours at the hospital A&E for a sickle cell attack resulting in premature labour of 
her son.  

 
7.3 People with long-term conditions felt they should have more consideration for 

people who may be frequent visitors“... more sympathetic staff at A+E to hear 
patient’s needs who have multiple illnesses and need more care”.  And that there 
should be come mechanism to fast track frequent visitors  “every time my son is 
not well he has to be readmitted as a inpatient to 7F, however in order to readmit 
him we have to always go through A&E, we can’t come direct to the ward. And 
every time we go to A&E they ask the same questions again and do all the tests 
again; this is very frustrating for us, on one occasion there was a two day gap 
between discharge and readmission and we had to go through the whole A&E 
process...why can’t they just let us go to the ward?..This process usually is very 
stressful to my son.” 

 
Questions 

a) Do they assess people as to the level of pain they are under on arrival?  
b) Why can’t people who are frequent visitors be fast tracked through A&E?  

 

8. Food 
 
8.1 There are mixed views about the food provided. Some patients commented that 

they do not like the food due to blandness of taste and lack of variety on the menu 
and other patients feel patients should not expect too much from a hospital, 
therefore the standard is ok and at least you are given a choice. 

 
8.2 In some areas it was not so much about the quality of food but about: 

• not enough food,  

• food being cold when it arrived,  

• food running out before it reaches patients, and 

• patients not being given enough time to eat or not being given enough help to 
eatwith food being taken away without being touched.  

 
8.3 Not all patients have family to bring in extra food and there is a sense that this is 

necessary.  
 

“After my operation I was on a ward for seven days, on three of the days I didn’t 
get the food that I ordered, on one day I got no food at all apart from sandwiches, 
and I certainly don’t want cold food when I’m in hospital. Out of the seven days I 
was on ward, only on three of those days I got the food I ordered, and even then it 
really wasn’t very nice.” 
 
“The food is awful, not appetising and bland. The halal food is always curry. Not 
all Muslims are south Asian and I don’t like the curry.” 

Page 39



10 

 

 

9 Discharge  
 

9.1 Patients being discharged when they or their family felt it was too early or 
before appropriate care packages were in place 

 
“It seems hospitals want to discharge patients quickly...they discharged my father 
and he was not well enough to be discharged...although we highlighted that he 
was not feeling better, they insisted on discharging him... so we took my father 
home, but he could not cope due to the pain, we took him to the doctors and the 
doctor said that he should return to the hospital – this whole situation could have 
been avoided if the hospital doctors decided that he was not ready for discharge- 
it seems once they make their minds up, the decision has to stick!!” 

 
9.2 Patients self discharging because of the noise, temperature on the ward and lack of 

air.  
 

9.3 We have heard of several patients self discharging.  One was in the cardiovascular 
ward, they left because it was very noisy with all the monitoring equipment and 
they couldn’t get any sleep.  Other people have left because of the temperature on 
the wards being too hot and stuffy and they felt as if they couldn’t get any air. This 
seems to be a fairly significant safe guarding issue as there is obviously a reason 
that they are in hospital in the first place and to get up and leave could, one would 
think, have potentially life threatening consequences. We have raised this issue 
with the Chief Nurse and understand that an audit of the number of patients self 
discharging is currently taking place and we will receive a copy of the audit.  

 
9.4 Patients having to wait a long time to be discharged on the day they were leaving 

and being left to wait in the discharge lounge while prescriptions were being filled.  
 

“My mother was discharged in the morning but had to sit around and wait all day 
until 12 at night for her prescription to be filled.” 

 

10. Incontinence service  
 

10.1 Over the past 12 months we have picked up issues with the adult incontinence 
service.  

 
“My mother had a very bad experience with district nurses and the Incontinence 
service once discharged from hospital- my mother was without incontinence pads 
(& correct size pads) for almost two months due to problems of communication 
between the District Nurse and the Incontinence service . . . the nurse was 
blaming the incontinence service for this mistake and the incontinence service 
blamed the nurse for this mistake. Currently we are still waiting for the 
incontinence pads for the last two months we have been borrowing from other 
people.” 
 
“Getting through to the incontinence service is very difficult as no one answers 
the phone, it seems only 10% of calls are answered and if you leave a voicemail it 
takes them two days to get back to you- based on my experience I would say the 
incontinence service is not that good for the reasons that is difficult to access the 
service and once you get through no one can be held accountable for their actions/ 
lack of actions; it’s very frustrating!!” 

 
Question 

a) Who has overall accountability for the incontinence service? 

Page 40



11 

 

b) Could we have an outline and information on the incontinence service in order for 
us to properly inform patients? 

 

11. Hospital Transport 
 
11.1 We continue to receive many comments about the reliability and lateness of the 

patient transport service. “Hospital patient transport is not reliable, sometimes 
they come early, sometimes they come late, but they never arrive on time...” 

 
 “ I often have to wait about 55 minutes for the driver to come and pick me up 

after leaving the ward. However I do think the drivers are very helpful, and 
always help me get in and out of the car. Getting to the hospital is not as bad, as 
the drivers often turn up on time but the problem occurs when leaving the 
hospital.” 

 
 “Patient transport is generally good; I use this service regularly and I am grateful I 

am offered the service... however they are always late by an hour from the 
appointment time given to you, but I can understand why they are always late 
they have to pick up so many people along the way...the delay by patient 
transport also delays your appointment time at the hospital, as you get seen later 
than the time given to you...it would also be useful if patient transport can pick 
you up straight away after a hospital appointment- you normally have to wait an 
hour...and whilst you are waiting no one attends to you- it would be nice to get a 
cup of tea!!” 

 
Questions 

a) Have there been any user surveys undertaken regarding patient transport services 
recently? 

b) We understand that the service has changed or is about to change.  Could we have 
and update? 

c) Isn’t it possible now to use technology to provide a tracking system as to where you 
vehicle is so people could get on with doing other things while they waited?  

 
 

12. Environment issues 
 

12.1 Most people are very complementary about the new hospital mentioning it is clean, 
modern and spacious. But there are a number of issues frequently raised:  

• Layout is complicated, there needs to be better signs to direct patients.  

• Lifts - People find them hard to use and confusing 

• Temperature– some wards are hot (High dependency Unit) and some are 
freezing from a patient perspective (Renal Outpatients)  

• Lack of air – not being able to open the windows makes it very stuffy and 
sometimes stifling 

• Noise–monitoring equipment makes a lot of noise at night making it difficult to 
sleep.  

 

13. Complaints and PALS procedures 
 
13.1 Patients have complained to Healthwatch Tower Hamlets about: 

• difficulty finding out the complaints procedure and who to contact to make a 
complaint 

• the timeframe for responding to complaints?  

• procedure being too complicated, hard to navigate through and too long 
 
Questions 

Page 41



12 

 

1. Could we have an update on the complaints procedure please, including the 
expected response time? 

2. Is there a proposal for Healthwatch to receive a regular complaints analyses report?  
 
13.2 PALS 
 
13.3 Recently we received concerns that patients are finding it difficult to access the 

PALs service i.e. patients are telling  us that they find it difficult to get through to 
 PALs service on the phone and when they do manage to get hold of them they are 
requested to make an appointment to see them, which can take a long time. 
Patients that have used PALs service in the past have said that they prefer the drop 
in option as it was accessible when they felt distressed and needed to see someone 
quickly for support or advise.    

 
13.4 Also PALs signposting does not appear to be very good, for example patients are 

still turning up to Trust Offices (Mile End Hospital) to see a PALs officer and in 
some cases they have been advised to turn up to Trust Offices on the advice of 
hospital staff both at Royal London and Mile End Hospital.  

13.5  We were notified in July 2013 that Barts set up a call hub that will deal with all 
PALS calls. In addition the drop-in service for the public at The Royal London, 
Whipps Cross and Newham was being replaced by a booked appointment system for 
patients.  Apparently this system would be piloted for three months.   

Question 

1. What has been the outcome of thePALS service pilot?  

 

14. Next Steps  

Healthwatch Tower Hamlets has a statutory right to a response to requests for information 
within 20 working days. Section 224 of The Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007. 
 
On receiving the responses for further information from the relevant departments or 
wards of within Barts Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Advisory Group will develop a number 
of recommendations to Barts NHS Trust.  

 

 

Page 42



13 

 

 
Appendix 1  

 

Enter and View Visit 
Royal London Hospital Renal Unit 
Barts Trust  
9th Floor, Royal London Hospital, Whitechapel E1 1BB  
 
Date: Monday 28 September 2013 10.00-12.30 & Wednesday 9th October 10.30-12.30 (Two 
visits) 
 
Healthwatch Tower Hamlets E&V Representatives: David Burbidge; William Colverson; 
Julia Avery; Dorbesh Ali 
Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Staff:Shamsur Choudhury 
Barts Contact: Brenda McManus (Renal Consultant Nurse) 
 
Purpose of Visit:  
 

1. To ascertain feedback from renal outpatients, renal inpatients and the 
Haemodialysis Unit patients on their experience of services at the Renal Unit. 

2. To find out from patients their suggestions for improving the service at the Renal 
Unit.  

 
The visit to the Renal Unit was undertaken over two days, on the first visit Healthwatch 
representatives spoke to hospital management and spoke to patients in the ‘Renal 
Outpatient’ waiting areas (Reception Area A&B). Due to time constraints it was not 
possible to visit the other services provided by the Renal Unit and it was decided to 
undertake a follow up visit to speak to renal inpatients and haemodialysis patients.  
 
General information about the Renal Unit 
 

• Barts Renal Unit is the second biggest renal service in the country and provides 
care for patients in North East London; parts of Essex and surrounding areas. The 
majority of the renal service is provided from the 9th floor of the Royal London 
Hospital.  

• The Renal Unit offers treatment to patients at all stages of the kidney disease 
pathway. This ranges from diagnosis of early kidney disease through to caring for 
patients with all forms of advanced kidney disease, including dialysis, 
transplantation and end of life care.  

• The Renal Unit has 50 inpatient beds; 88 Haemodialysis machines.  

• The majority of patients access the service via A&E. 

• The Renal Unit had a 22.5% response rate of patients completing the ‘Friends and 
Family Test’- this is a good response rate compared to other Barts Health 
Departments/CAG’s. 

• GP’s have voted the Renal Unit ‘Team of the Year’ for information sharing.  

• The Renal Unit has a patient group and currently three patients are members.  

• Patients can view their results online via ‘Renal Patient View - 
www.www.renalpatientview.org 

• Current challenges: (1) The haemodialysis ward can feel cold for patients as they 
have to stay on the dialysis machine for four hours. (2) there is currently a lack of 
entertainment available for dialysis patients- there is no Wi-Fi available in the 
hospital so patients can’t bring their laptops to pass time also as most of the 
patients are categorised as ‘low income’ the hospital entertainment system might 
be too expensive for them to access.   

 

Page 43



14 

 

Patient Comments/Feedback 
 
Renal Outpatients Comments (Reception Area: A & B) – Date of Visit: 28/08/13 
 
Patient 1  
 
I would like to see the same doctor; every time I see a different doctor, I also think they 
need to employ more doctors.  
 
Male, 40’s, Middle Eastern 
 
Patient 2 
 
I am generally happy with the service I get here; however I have this particular health 
problem and the consultants are not able to identify it and can’t find a solution to help 
me. Also they keep changing consultants, would be nice to have some consistency...the 
blood test is also quite time consuming, you have to wait 30-40 minutes.  
 
Male; 40’s, Black Caribbean  
 
Patient 3  
 
It’s a good service ; don’t really have any suggestions for improving it; I am happy how the 
doctors/consultants explain things and the treatment and care is very good...blood test 
takes a long time, it can take up to 1.5 hours.   
 
Male, 40’s; Pakistani 
 
Patient 4  
 
I’m happy with the service I get here; I am happy with the appointments and also with 
appointment waiting times. The doctors and nurses are great as they are helpful and 
informative and they also give you time to ask questions. Reception staff are also good. 
The only negative is the ward is quite far from the main entrance of the hospital.  
 
Male; 70, White British  
 
Patient 5 
 
I am generally happy with the service I get at the Renal Outpatients service; the doctors 
and nurses are very good; they review my treatment very well. The reception staff on the 
9th floor are also very good (however the reception people on ground floor are not very 
helpful). Appointment waiting times are generally good, but on the last appointment I had 
to wait 45 minutes. The only thing I am not happy about is the blood test; it takes over an 
hour to get this done. 
 
Female; mid 20’s; Asian   
 
Patient 6  
 
The doctors here are good; they discuss and explain things properly and give patients 
time.  Patient transport can be an issue I have been waiting here for over an hour to be 
picked up. 
 
Female; 60; White British  
 
Patient 7 

Page 44



15 

 

 
I am generally happy with the service I get here, getting a blood test done can be quite 
time consuming... usually you have to wait at least 30 minutes before seen by a nurse.  
 
Male; 38; Bangladeshi  
 
Patient 8 
 
I am happy with the staff here, they are friendly and caring...blood test can take 20-30 
minutes and it can take at least 1 hour before being discharged, this is mainly due to 
waiting around for patient transport to pick me up.  
 
Female; 76; White British  
 
Summary of Patient Feedback (Common Themes)  
 

• Majority of patients seem to be happy with the service they get from renal 
outpatients; patients have highlighted that they think staff (doctors and nurses) 
are very good as they explain things properly and give them time. Most patients 
also seem satisfied with the appointments process and also seem happy about 
waiting times when visiting renal outpatients. 

• Majority of patients commented that they are not satisfied with the blood test 
waiting times.  

• Some patients mentioned that consultants keep changing at every appointment; 
they feel there needs to be continuity of being able to see the same consultant on 
different visits.  

 
 
Haemodialysis Unit Comments – Date of Visit: 09/10/2013 
 
Haemodialysis patients visit the Renal Unit three times a week and have to be attached to 
the dialysis machine for four hours per day. The Haemodialysis Unit runs three sessions 
each day (7.30-11.30am, 1-5pm & 5.30-10pm); during the morning session, 28 patients use 
the dialysis machine; in the afternoon a further 28 patients use the dialysis machines and 
in the evening 12 patients use the machines- over the course of the day the haemodialysis 
unit serves 68 dialysis patients. 
 
Patient 1  
 
In general the service here is good, nurses look after me well...but it gets very cold here 
especially if you are laying down for over four hours- so they need to put the temperature 
up a bit. Could do with also improving Patient Transport; they always bring me to the 
Renal Ward 1.5 hours before my appointment time; it’s quite frustrating waiting around 
for that amount of time.  
 
Male; Late 60’s; Caribbean 
 
Patient 2 
 
Staff here are very good; they look after me very well and try their best. Patient transport 
also takes me home; I am grateful for this service. It’s very cold in the ward; they need to 
put the temperature up so its feels warmer for us. 
 
Male; 70’s; Bangladeshi 
 
Patient 3 
 

Page 45



16 

 

The service here is very good; I am very happy with the staff as they are very caring. I also 
like the patient transport service, I am happy that they take me home. I feel really cold 
here, and also very hungry, before they provided sandwiches, now they only provide tea 
and biscuits. It would be great if they could provide sandwiches and also made the ward a 
bit warmer; as you can see I have two blankets over me- it’s freezing.  
 
Female; 68; Cyprus   
 
Patient 4 
 
I feel hungry, two pieces of biscuit is not enough, I would like a sandwich...I am also 
feeling cold; both of these factors make the experience of coming here uncomfortable. 
They also stopped providing tissues near the bedside. The nurses and doctors are great 
they look after you well.  
 
Female; 50’s, African  
 
Patient 5 
 
It’s cold here (I think the temperature is set like that for infection control), nurses could 
make more of an effort to explain test results (chemical imbalances on the test results). 
The curtains are loose and currently being tied up with plastic bag- that’s not very 
professional. Nurses are generally very good and they look after you well. However doctors 
should interact with patients more, I hardly ever see any doctors on the wards. I noticed 
some patients complain of being hungry, I think they should provide sandwiches and the 
decision to provide sandwiches should be based on individual circumstances i.e. if they are 
old; living on their own, if they can afford it- there are a lot of patients here that are not 
able to feed themselves before arriving on wards or can’t simply afford to buy a sandwich.   
 
Male; 50’s; Black Caribbean  
 
Patient 6  
 
I have been receiving dialysis treatment for about eight years now as I have kidney failure. 
Overall I would say the service here is excellent, the doctors and nurses are fantastic. 
There are times when they seem short staffed (i.e. lunch time) and when this happens this 
has an impact on the service as a whole because kidney patients who are on dialysis like 
myself regularly ‘crash’ which means professional care is needed constantly around the 
clock when people are here- I personally think if two people crashed at the same time 
they won’t have the staffing capacity to attend to both patients – which is frightening 
really. There are about 28 beds on this ward, and everyone is receiving treatment at the 
same time therefore nurses are constantly busy, which means I have to wait a long time 
before I get the chance to talk to a nurse or physically see one.  
 
One big problem I have here is that it is extremely cold. I mean even wearing two to three 
blankets doesn’t keep me warm and most of the time I am sitting here freezing, I’m here 
hours on end it really affects me. At the old hospital it used to be warm and cosy but here 
it’s very cold, they really need to put up the heating. However the new hospital is much 
cleaner compared to the old hospital and they also have modern equipment.  
 
When an emergency rises I’ve seen staff act quickly and efficiently which is extremely 
important and good because when someone crashes time really isn’t on your side. I think 
I’ve bonded with staff here I’ve been coming here for a long time I know most of the staff 
now; overall they’re all very good. This ward is full of complex illnesses it’s really tough 
here; doctors and nurses are excellent here I’ve got no worries about that. 
 

Page 46



17 

 

Most of the time I arrange my transport home myself but I do have days where I’m not 
feeling too good and get a cab home. I have days when I’m really not feeling good after 
coming off the machine and the staff make sure I’m ok (carry out test)  before letting me 
go home which is very reassuring- usually nurse could tell how I am feeling after coming 
off the machine. I think on some days when I am not feeling well the patient transport 
service could benefit me.   
 
They use to provide sandwiches before at the old hospital but they’ve stopped that now, 
some people complain of being hungry, however they still provide tea and biscuit. 
 
They use to provide a social worker that would visit the ward and support patients with 
their problems e.g. getting the right benefits, etc, yeah he helped me with my 
benefits...now I don’t see him much, and I think they have reduced his hours, which is a 
shame.  
 
Male, 52, White British   
 
Patient 7  
 
The service here is generally good and I’m happy. I do get those occasional visits from 
doctors and I think their care is very good; they are friendly and polite to me. It’s 
extremely cold in here and multiple blankets does not really help, they really need to turn 
up the heating; It wasn’t this bad at the last hospital (old RLH). I’m always shivering which 
I am not happy about.  
 
I have been receiving dialysis treatment for around 12 years now and that’s such a long 
time ... ‘I’m really getting fed up’. I believe the doctors and nurses are doing everything 
they can but I feel as If my body doesn’t want to put up with all these medications and 
treatments. Like many patients I come here for dialysis Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays 
for four hours each of those days.  
 
I’ve got these terrible aches and pains on my legs and back, the doctors don’t really pay 
attention to this and just give me ointments which are not helpful, I’ve been to see my GP 
and this problem really isn’t getting better.  
 
Tea and biscuit are provided, however I don’t really eat it and I am not bothered if they 
don’t provide it.  
 
Female, 60’s, Bangladeshi 
 
Patient 8 
 
I’ve been receiving treatment for five years now and I’d say the care and service isn’t that 
good here. Some nurses are rude and don’t always attend when I need them...I am not 
happy about this. The doctors are excellent around here I’d say I get better service here 
then my own GP surgery. But sometimes they rush and I feel as if I don’t get enough 
information on my care. I think doctors shouldn’t rush they should give me enough time 
and adequate information about my care. 
 
It is always cold in here they need to turn up the heating. No food and drinks are provided 
to me, which I think is not good. We sit here for hours sometimes even get hungry and I 
have no choice as I am stuck on a machine.  
 
Male, 60’s, White 
 
Patient 9  
 

Page 47



18 

 

I’ve been having treatment for two years now, the doctors here are very good and I feel 
that I always get top quality care from them; and the nurses are nice when they want to 
be. Sometimes the nurses are very busy attending to patients and some days when they 
are short staffed there is madness on this ward. I think they need to have more nurses on 
the ward, I never get the chance to speak (or ask for anything) to a nurse during the four 
hour session and I will only get to see them when I am leaving.  
 
Male, 65, Bangladeshi  
 
Patient 10 
 
I have nothing but praises for the nursing staff and doctors –they are excellent.  The new 
hospital is very clean and nicer than the old one. My only complaint is that I am freezing 
cold, I have already been given two blankets but there are no more left for me to have. 
 
Female; 30-40; Mixed Background 
 
Patient 11 
 
I thinks the facilities in the new hospital are a lot better and it is good that there is much 
more space. I think the nursing staff are great, but I think that they are still understaffed. 
The shortages of nursing staff gets worrying at the end of the dialysis session, as most 
people come off the machines at the same time and this is the moment when most people 
begin to crash- so a select handful of nurses cannot keep an eye on everybody. I also think 
the ward is freezing. 
 
Female; 40s; Black African  
 
Patient 12 
 
The nurses and doctors are “ok” however I think that the nurses don’t keep an eye on the 
patients the whole time- some of the beds are not in eye view of the nursing station and 
sometimes the nurses aren’t always at their station. I get very anxious when I am in one of 
those beds, as the nurses may not notice if something happens to me. I think that there 
should be at least one nurse to a bay- I feel the ward is short staffed. I preferred the old 
hospital because the doctors would come straight away when needed but in the new 
hospital they don’t. Also it takes a long time to get on to the ward, in the new hospital, as 
it is on the 9th floor and the lift takes a long time. I also feel very cold (She was visibly 
shivering) and they won’t give me another blanket as they don’t have any left as have to 
save them for the next session. Also I feel hungry and I think they should definitely provide 
sandwiches. 
 
Female; 40-50’s; Bangladeshi 
 
Patient 13 
 
I think the nurses are very good and they do a good deal more than the doctors do. I 
hardly ever see the doctor and when I do they don’t give me much of their time. The 
doctors change a lot here, now I don’t even know who my doctor is. I also think the ward 
is short staffed. I also think the management of the hospital transport service is not very 
good. I often have to wait about 55 minutes for the driver to come and pick me up after 
leaving the ward. However I do think the drivers are very helpful, and always help me get 
in and out of the car. Getting to the hospital is not as bad, as the drivers often turn up on 
time but the problem occurs when leaving the hospital.  
 
Sometimes I become hungry and tea and biscuits are not enough to sustain me. I would 
like to have the sandwiches back as they definitely helped me and also for some people 

Page 48



19 

 

the sandwiches are their only meal of the day and now they don’t even get that. I am 
feeling really cold and would really like to be given more blankets (she already had three 
of them round her). The blankets sometimes smell and I would prefer if they didn’t smell. 
My biggest concern is the location of the ward, I am very worried if there was a fire or an 
emergency of some sort, how would we all get out when we are stuck to the machine- If 
the patients’ wires were all suddenly pulled out, they all would bleed to death. I think 
putting the ward on the 9th floor was a stupid idea and it should have been put on the 
ground floor.  
 
On one occasion after finishing the dialysis session I was feeling very hungry, and I was 
asked to see a doctor 30 minutes later, so I thought I would go to the canteen and get a 
bite to eat before seeing the doctor... it took me about 20-30 minutes to find the canteen 
on the 5th floor, by the time I found the canteen I only had about 5 minutes to eat as had 
to be back on the ward to see the doctor- I think the layout of the new hospital is too 
complicated, there needs to be better signs to direct patients.  
 
Female; 50’s; Black African  
 
Patient 14  
 
I am really hungry and would like the sandwiches back as the tea /coffee and biscuits are 
just not enough. The doctors and nurses are great; however I think there should be more 
nurses. I prefer the old hospital as it was warmer and this one is freezing.  
Female; 50- 60; Bangladeshi  
 
Summary of Patient Feedback (Common Themes)  
 

• Generally most of the patients are happy with the nursing and clinical staff; they 
view them as caring and supportive. 

• Almost every single patient said that they feel either ‘cold’ or ‘freezing’ when they 
are attached to the dialysis machine (from our observation some patients were 
shaking because they felt so cold). Patients feel the temperature of the ward 
needs to go up a lot more to make them feel at ease. 

• Some patients mentioned that there was shortage of blankets in the ward; when 
patients feel cold and request additional blankets (request could be 1-2 blankets 
extra), the nursing staff are unable to provide them the blankets (some nurses 
citing that they have to keep them for other sessions) - this causes further 
discomfort for patients as they do not have enough covering to keep themselves 
warm. 

• Patients feel that the unit is short of nursing staff; they feel insecure that there is 
a lack of presence of nurses and have cited that they fear if two people ‘crash’ at 
the same time there will not be enough staff to help them. They also feel the 
nurses are overworked as they have to attend to substantial amount of patients.  

• Most of the patients said that they were ‘hungry’ and that tea and biscuits 
provided were not enough, they feel they should be provided sandwiches as well. 
Some patients said sandwiches were provided in the past and recently they stopped 
giving patients sandwiches.  

 
 
Inpatient Ward – Renal Transplant Ward (9F)  
 
Patient 1 
 
I have been here for over one week and I think this is a very good hospital; the nurses are 
good and the doctors are very good, the doctors give good advice and information – overall 
the nursing and clinical look after you well and seem to be caring. There is always a staff 
member in our bay and I feel there is sufficient staff presence to keep me feeling safe. I 

Page 49



20 

 

also like the size of the bays, usually at hospitals everyone is cramped into one big ward, 
but at this hospital there is plenty of room to move about. The food is ok; I can choose 
what I want.  
 
Male, 50’s, White British  
 
Patient 2 
 
So far my experience here has been good; I have been here for the past two weeks and 
will hopefully get discharged in 10 days. Nurses are ok; they respond to your needs and 
will do their best to come to your bedside if required, they also seem caring, I would say 
out of 10 nurses eight are caring and two are ok. In regards to the doctors, well you need 
to ask a lot of questions before you get answers, some of these doctors think us patients 
don’t have  the capacity to understand medical information about our health conditions. I 
noticed if you ask lots of questions they tend to be helpful and do explain things properly, 
but they are not forthright with the information.  
 
The bays are clean and the toilets are also clean, however I have noticed the floor does 
not get cleaned properly as all they do is circle the cleaning machine in the centre of the 
bays; and don’t bother cleaning around the bedsides.  
 
The food is not very good and it’s something I would not recommend. They do give you 
choice, but the menu is not varied.   
 
Male; 50’s, White British 
 
Patient 3 
 
I have been in the hospital for 10 weeks now and I had an operation two weeks ago; 
currently I’m unable to walk due to the nature of my problem and the operation. The 
overall experience here has been good. There have been numerous occasions since I have 
been here when the ward was short staffed, due to staff shortages sometimes I have not 
been given my dinner as I have been unable to walk to get my dinner from the ward 
corridor. I think this is not right, nurses should be more organised and decide who does 
which shifts.  
 
I think doctors do their jobs well I always understand what they say and I feel as if they 
really care for me in a special way. They are friendly and loyal, and I feel I get excellent 
service therefore I’m very happy with the doctors.  
 
Currently I am waiting to be moved to rehabilitation, I think the process of being 
transferred to rehabilitation is quite long and I would be happy if they could speed up the 
process if it is possible. The food provided is not bad I’m more or less happy.  
 
Female, 60’s, African 
 
 
Patient 4 
 
I’m in hospital for my kidney; I had a transplant just 12 days ago. I got a call from the 
transplant team 12 days ago saying they have found a match for me I then came in 
hospital in the morning and had the operation, I think this service I received was very fast 
and quick and efficient. I’m really happy with it.  
 
The service I am getting here at the moment is satisfactory and not the best- it’s ok. I 
think the care I’m getting from doctors is great - I’m very happy with it. There are days 
when the ward gets short staffed, this creates problem as there is not much interaction 

Page 50



21 

 

between patients and staff. As I’ve just had a transplant I’m in a lot of pain all the time, 
when I need painkillers’ nurses take an awful long time to come to me and physically give 
me medications. I think this should to be improved as soon possible because I think it’s not 
good for patient’s prognosis. 
 
As I need ongoing dialysis I’ve realised when I go off for the treatment my food gets 
delivered to my bedside by the nurses, and by the time I get back its stone cold, I’ve 
asked for them to reheat the food but nurses tell me that it won’t be possible as the 
kitchen is now closed. I am very unhappy with the bedside service and I think it is rude 
and unacceptable. I’m in hospital for a reason and patients have the right for some 
courtesy and kindness.  
 
I have noticed that the care I receive over the weekend isn’t as good as the care I receive 
on the weekdays; I understand that not everyone works on the weekend but it’s no excuse 
for quality of care to drop. I think this is a bad mark on the hospital as a whole and this 
needs to improve for the sake of patient’s safety.  
 
Female, 55+, White  
 
Patient 5  
 
The quality of care and service is ok; I’ve been in hospital around a week now with kidney 
and bladder problems. I sometimes give the nurses a call (buzzer) but have to wait till at 
least an hour before someone responds. One night I was in pain and couldn’t sleep all 
night and I ended up waiting for a long time before a nurse came to see me.  
 
I get a visit from the doctor everyday and I think they explain everything I need to know in 
details and also in a way that I understand properly.  
 
The food here is very bad, the hot food is tasteless and it’s not up to standard, therefore I 
am unable to eat it. For the past three days I have been eating cold sandwiches which do 
not have much flavour or taste.  
 
Female, 50’s, Pakistani 
 
Patient 6  
 
The patient couldn’t speak English, so her carer (daughter) gave us her feedback:   
 
I am very upset about the care being provided to my mother. My main concern is that I 
don’t actually feel my mum is safe and I worry that the nurses don’t check on her enough 
or take good care of her. My mother is extremely frail, partially deaf, and partially blind 
she gets extremely distressed when the nurses don’t always come at her demand and 
when they do eventually come, they just tell her to do it herself. I think the ward is short 
staffed and the old hospital was much better as there was a good amount of staff there.  
However I do think the doctors are brilliant.  
 
When I came into A&E a week ago with my mother we were transferred to the RAU (Rapid 
Assessment Unit) and from the time we came in we had to wait 10 hours to actually be 
seen by a consultant, even though my mother was in a visibly ill position. By this time it 
was the evening and for anything to actually be done or to be seen by the specialist 
consultant they now had to wait till the next morning- this was not a good experience.  
 
I like the new hospital as it is a lot fresher and cleaner, but I think the room (bay) has no 
air conditioning and it can get very stuffy and hot. 
 
Female; 70-80, Japanese  

Page 51



22 

 

 
Patient 7  
 
I have been in hospital for about six days (Kidney transplant operation); I think the care I 
have received has been fantastic- I am very happy.  
 
From a personal perspective I felt more comfortable coming in for my operation on a week 
day, as the after care is supposedly better since there are more doctors around then, 
rather than if the operation was on the weekend. Therefore I was pleased that my 
operation was on a weekday.  
 
My only complaint is when I was at the HDU (High Dependency Unit) the temperature was 
“hotter than the sun” and it was totally unbearable. I did understand for anaemic patients 
the temperature had to be high, but I thought that I should have been placed in a 
different area.  
 
I think the food is “ok”, but I wouldn’t choose to have that food at home. I think the 
system of ordering the food you want the day before is pointless and creates wastage i.e. 
some patients will order their food for the next day but will then get discharged that 
evening and so the whole meal goes to waste. I think it would be better to order the food 
in the morning. 
 
Male; 30’s; White  
 
Summary of Patient Feedback (Common Themes)  
 

• Patients generally seem happy about the care and treatment provided at renal 
inpatient and it seems patients are appreciative that the unit makes all attempts 
to help patients overcome their kidney issues- therefore it would appear patient’s 
value the service.  

• On the whole most patients feel that doctors and consultants explain things 
properly and are willing to give them time.  

• Most patients feel the ward is ‘short staffed’- patients have cited that the ward 
lacks staff presence and that if you call the bedside buzzer it takes a long time for 
nurses to respond or due to lack of staffing some patients are deprived of meals as 
they are unable to get up from their beds and are dependent on nursing staff to 
bring the food to their bedside. 

• There are mixed views about nursing staff; some patient’s feel some nurses are not 
supporting their bedside needs and can become rude when patients make requests 
and other patients feel the nurses are caring and attend to their needs.  

• There are mixed views about the food provided- some patients commented that 
they do not like the food due to blandness of taste and lack of variety on the menu 
and other patients feel patients should not expect too much from a hospital- 
therefore the standard is ok and at least you are given a choice to choose from the 
menu.  

• Some patients mentioned that the care and level of staffing over the weekends is 
not sufficient.  

 
Summary & Recommendations (for all three services visited at the Renal Unit)  
 

• During both visits the majority of the patients that we spoke to seem generally 
happy with the service they receive from the Renal Unit; they feel staff are caring 
and the level of treatment and care provided is generally good. As this is a 
specialised unit patients seem to appreciate the commitment of the unit to support 
them in managing their condition or help them get better. Conditions related to 
the kidney can be a long term condition for most of the patients (especially 

Page 52



23 

 

Haemodialysis patient), it would appear these patients seem well integrated into 
the unit and have developed supportive relationships with nursing staff.  

• We would strongly recommend that patients at the Haemodialysis Unit should be 
offered sandwiches or some additional food to help them overcome their hunger (if 
required). When speaking to patients it was evident to us that some patients were 
really suffering due to being hungry- this was very uncomfortable for us. We would 
recommend that additional food being offered is provided on an individual needs 
assessment, we particularly observed that the patients that were generally hungry 
were elderly or frail; living on their own or possibly falling into the category of 
‘low income’.  

• We would suggest that the room temperature of the Haemodialysis Unit is 
‘balanced’ so patients do not feel cold to the point they start to shake due to 
freezing. If it is not possible to balance the room temperature of the ward (could 
be due to valid reasons), then we would recommend that the ward has sufficient 
blankets to cover everyone’s requirement. 

• Staff shortages (or lack of staff presence) have come up often in our discussion 
with patients; we would strongly urge the unit to review the staffing levels to 
tackle the issues/fears highlighted by patients.  

• There needs to be better promotion of the ‘Renal Patient Group’ and generally 
better engagement with patients (especially the Haemodialysis Unit patients). Most 
patients are not aware of existence of the patient group and patients feel they are 
not involved, this is reflected by what one of the patients we spoke to said ‘I have 
been coming here for 8 years and not once has anybody asked me what I want’.   

 
Questions for Renal Unit Management   
 

• Patients at the Haemodialysis Unit are feeling discomfort due the fact they feel 
very cold, what actions (if any) are possible to overcome this?  

• What is the protocol on blanket distribution at the Haemodialysis Unit? Is there a 
limitation on how many blankets one patient can have?  

• Patients at the Haemodialysis Unit are also feeling discomfort due to feeling 
‘hungry’; it would be useful to know why the sandwich provision has been 
withdrawn. And how the unit plans to tackle the issue of hungry patients?   

 
Healthwatch Tower Hamlets representatives and staff would like to thank Dr Neil Ashman 
and Brenda McManus and their team for making all the necessary arrangements in 
organising the visit and for helping us during our visit. 
 
DISCLAIMER: 
1. The observations made in this report relate only to the visit carried out at the Renal 
Unit on the 28th September and 09th October 2013, which lasted for 2.5 Hours on each day. 
 
2. This report is not representative of all patients/service users/carers. It only represents 
the views of those who were able to contribute within the restricted time available. 
 

Page 53



24 

 

 

Appendix 2  
 

 

Enter and View Visit 
Royal London Hospital - Fracture Clinic 
Barts Trust  
2nd Floor, Fracture Clinic,Royal London Hospital, Whitechapel E1 1BB  
 
Date: Friday 30 August 2013 10.00-12.30 & Wednesday 23rd October 10.30-12.30 (Two 
visits) 
 
Healthwatch Tower Hamlets E&V Representatives: David Burbidge; William Colverson; 
Julia Avery 
Healthwatch Hackney E&V Representative: Milan Seth 
Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Staff:Shamsur Choudhury & Lindsey Williams  
Barts Contact: PramodAchan(Head of Department) & Hayley Terry (Head of Nursing 
Orthopaedics) 
 
Purpose of Visit:  
 

1. To ascertain feedback from Fracture Clinic patients on their experience of services 
at the Fracture Clinic. 

2. To find out from patients their suggestions for improving the service at the 
Fracture Clinic.   

 
The visit to the Fracture Clinic was undertaken over two days, on the first visit 
Healthwatch representatives spoke to Fracture Clinic management and to patients 
attending the ‘Back Clinic’. We decided to undertake a further visit to the Fracture Clinic 
(23rd October 2013), as (1) on the first visit (30/08/13) there were not many patients in 
the clinic at the time of our visit and (2) we wanted to gather feedback from a diverse 
range of Fracture Clinic patients rather than only ‘Back Clinic’ patients.  
 
General information on the Fracture Clinic (based on observations and factual 
information provided by management) 
 

• The Fracture Clinic is part of the Surgery CAG and sees 9000 patients per year. 
They provide the following services: One Stop shoulder clinic; pelvic and 
acetabular; fracture; sports hip and knee; limb reconstruction; spinal deformity; 
bone infection; major trauma follow up; foot and ankle; and complex hand. 

• The Fracture Clinic see patients from all over the country with the majority of 
patients coming through A&E. 

• The Fracture Clinic has a large waiting area that is divided into two sections. The 
smaller section is for patients waiting for x-rays and the larger section is for 
patients waiting to see Consultants/Registrars. Some patients (depending on injury 
type and stage of rehabilitation) are required to have an x-ray first and then wait 
to see a Consultant, for these types of patients the whole journey could last a 
minimum of 3-5 hours per visit.  

• The main reception area (located in the larger waiting area) has a TV screen placed 
on the wall behind the reception staff; the TV screen displays adverts and in quite 
small writing at the bottom of the adverts it states the waiting time delays for 
Consultants. It is important to highlight that the TV screen is not visible to most of 
the patients in the waiting area. 

• On the day of our visit the leaflet racks were also empty and we could not find any 
service leaflets in either of the waiting areas.  

Page 54



25 

 

• The Fracture Clinic has a 23% response rate of patients completing the ‘Friends and 
Family Test’- this is a good response rate compared to other Bart’s departments 
(CAG). 

• Patient Engagement: there are four patient reps on the CAG Board (non executive 
board members).  
 

Current Challenge 
 

• There is a significant backlog in orthopaedic surgical treatments; most patients 
that require surgical treatment have had their operation delayed by at least six 
months. The main reason for the backlog has been the departure of several 
specialised consultants in 2012 and as a result the department has had to recruit 
suitable replacement consultants. As orthopaedics surgery is a highly specialised 
medical discipline, Dr Achan said that it has not been easy to find suitable 
candidates. However in the last few months they have recruited and trained new 
consultants and the backlog is being tackled by undertaking extra clinics in the 
evenings and at weekends.  By December 2013 it is anticipated the backlog will be 
cleared.   

• on the day of our first visit we noticed a few patients getting frustrated with their 
appointment arrangements, these patients told us that their appointment letter 
had incorrect information about their appointment time and location therefore 
they had had a wasted visit or missed their appointment slot as at it was at another 
location. We asked Dr Achan if this was a common occurrence, Dr Achan 
reconfirmed that this scenario happens frequently and some patients turn up for 
their appointments on the wrong day, wrong time or at the wrong location (i.e. 
their appointment might be at St Barts). He highlighted that this is quite frustrating 
for the team as they have no control over the administration of appointment 
letters as they are sent by the Central Appointments Team and it would appear 
that they make a lot of mistakes.  

• Some patients have to wait longer for their appointment as their x-rays/scans have 
not been sent by their GP or their GP had not informed them that they need to 
contact the organisation that performed the x-ray/scans (In-Health) to transfer 
them to the hospital. Staff are then required to request x-rays/scans from In-
Health on behalf of the patient and this process can take up to one hour- this 
whole process increases the patients waiting time and also increases the 
administration of the team.  

 
Patient Comments /Feedback  
 
Fracture Clinic – Friday 30th August (Back Clinic)  
 
Patient 1 
 
I’m happy with the service so far and I have no complaints.  
 
Female, 50’s, White British  
 
Patient 2  
 
The Clinic is running 10 minutes late for my appointment but that’s fine and I don’t mind. 
The environment is clean and the staff are friendly. 
 
Female, 40s, White British 
 
Patient 3 
 

Page 55



26 

 

I’ve not been here for a while as I have spent the last two years trying to get an 
appointment for someone to resolve my lower back problems - the only reason why I was 
seen today was because I went through the Complaints’ Department. I had my surgery in 
August 2011 and was seen six weeks later by the Physiotherapy Department (London Royal 
Hospital) and was told that I will receive an appointment at the Pain Clinic at Mile End 
Hospital. I waited for a couple of weeks, but never received an appointment. I tried to 
chase-up my appointment, just to be told that I missed it (this bearing in minded I never 
received the appointment letter in the first place). So far it’s been a bit of a nightmare to 
get an appointment...  
 
Female, 50s, White British  
 
Patient 4 
 
My appointment was at 10.45 and it’s now 11.20am. Apparently they are trying to retrieve 
my MRI scan. I don’t know why they don’t have it already?  Apart from that the service is 
fine. 
 
Female, 30s, Bangladeshi   
 
Patient 5 
 
It’s my first time here and I have been referred by my GP, I waited about three-four weeks 
to get this appointment, which is quite good for a hospital appointment...so far everything 
seems ok, receptionist has been helpful...not sure about waiting times though, but I did 
not notice the waiting times information at the bottom of the TV screen until you pointed 
it out to me.  
 
Male; 40’s, White British  
 
Patient 6 
 
This is my first appointment in two years; my back is troubling me again, it has taken a lot 
of pleading to the GP to refer me again-almost nine months!! Staff seem friendly here, 
however my appointment is running 40 minutes late and also I don’t know who I am seeing 
today, it would be useful if receptionist informed me when I checked in if consultants are 
running late and also provide the name of the consultant I will be seen by today.  
 
Females; early 40’s, Bangladeshi  
 
Fracture Clinic- Wednesday 23rd October 2013  
 
Patient 1 
 
I came into A&E after my accident. The nurses there were extremely attentive and caring; 
I really appreciated the help they gave me. Whilst at A&E I was seen by three different 
doctors who gave me three different diagnoses within the space of 24 hours. I understand 
that they were trying to get information to me as quickly as possible but I think doctors 
need to communicate with each other better.  
 
I have been to the fracture clinic three times now over 4 months to get scans, and really 
feel that waiting so long for the next scan is a waste of time. I am not too sure what I 
should be doing in-between as no one really tells me. Every time I come for a scan I see a 
different doctor and feel there is no continuity. I would like to have access to my medical 
record much more easily, like you can in the US, so I can really see what is going on. I 
have now been to see a private doctor who really explained to me everything properly and 
talked me through useful exercises to do in the mean time. I always leave the Fracture 

Page 56



27 

 

Clinic feeling very happy but do sometimes feel incomplete as if they haven’t put all the 
pieces together. Waiting times are usually not a problem here, although today my 
appointment was 9:15 and it is now 10:16am. 
 
Female; 30-40, Mixed background American  
 
Patient 2 
 
I was referred here by my GP, which I feel was a very easy process with not too much 
hassle. I initially went to the hospital in Harlow for my operation, but was then referred 
here for all the scans. The doctors and nurses here are absolutely fantastic, they come 
when you call them; they are also attentive and if they see you feeling down they always 
try to cheer you up. My only complaint is that there is no parking at the Royal London 
Hospital. 
 
Female; 70-80, White British  
 
Patient 3 
 
I was initially taken to the A&E in Newham. I did not like the care I received there as I felt 
the doctors and nurses were not caring enough. I have preferred the care here, I feel the 
doctors and nurses are much more organised and they actually know what is going on. 
With regards to the waiting time, it is not usually that bad, and I do not know today how 
long we will have to wait. I hadn’t noticed the screen that informs a patient of possible 
delays until it was pointed out to me by you and also the receptionist has not told me 
either. We would like to be told by the receptionist for possible waiting delays as we 
would need to go and put another parking ticket on our car otherwise we could get a 
parking fine. Sometimes I get annoyed by the double standards of hospitals for example if 
we are late for appointment our appointment gets cancelled and we have to wait another 
four weeks to be seen, but the irony is...doctors are allowed to be late and that’s not a 
problem!!.  
 
Male; 20-30, Asian  
 
 
Patient 4 
 
I came in through A&E, the doctor, who I can’t remember the name of, was very rude and 
arrogant, but I made a complaint and was told I didn’t have to see him again. The nurses 
here on the Fracture Clinic are really good, they definitely look after you well, they are 
very caring and are genuinely concerned. The Clinic does not usually run late, but today it 
seems they are running late by thirty minutes. I cannot think of anything that I would like 
to change about the service. 
 
Female, 20-30, Mixed Origin 
 
Patient 5 
 
After my accident I had to wait three weeks for my operation, but it was initially going to 
be five weeks, but as they could see I was in a lot of pain the consultant found me a slot 
and operated on me sooner- I am very grateful for this. Within the first minutes of seeing 
the doctor I felt at ease as they are very polite and kind and Dr Elvey is fantastic. All my 
appointments have been pre booked for me and I was just told when I have to come in... 
It couldn’t have been any easier. Also the care provided by the nurses was fantastic, they 
really looked after me. 
 
Male, 50-60, Asian 

Page 57



28 

 

 
 
Patient 6  
 
I was referred here by my GP; I find the waiting time delays can be very annoying. To get 
an appointment here was relatively easy, however to get an appointment with physio is an 
absolute nightmare and I believe that the Physio Department is definitely a downfall. 
After my operation I was on a ward for seven days, on three of the days I didn’t get the 
food that I ordered, on one day I got no food at all apart from sandwiches, and I certainly 
don’t want cold food when I’m in hospital. Out of the seven days I was on ward, only on 
three of those days I got the food I ordered, and even then it really wasn’t very nice. I also 
think the design of the new lifts is extremely bad as a lot of people don’t realise that on 
some lifts you have to operate them from the outside, so you have people going up and 
down constantly and looking confused.  
 
My biggest complaint however is the parking...there is just nowhere to park, I have a 
disabled badge and although there are some disabled parking bays they are always full- we 
live in Essex and we have to drive in because we can’t get the tube as Whitechapel 
underground Station does not have lifts or escalators and using the stairs is not possible 
due to my injury. They really should have designed a car park when they made the new 
hospital. Also we were not given any information on parking by the Fracture Clinic- it 
would have been useful if they provided this information to us.  
 
Male, 50-60, White British  
 
Patient 7 
 
I came in through A&E. Although I had broken my leg, I had to walk down the ramp to get 
to A&E as I was told if I wanted a wheelchair I would have to wait longer- this I did not 
want to do. This is my first time at the Fracture Clinic, and they are running an hour 
late...I never understand why the doctors are running late they should just employ more, 
and I don’t believe that they have no money. The parking situation is ridiculous, I am very 
lucky as my partner is a postman and so we can park in the post office car park that is 
right next door. I don’t know how anyone else finds a place to park here. 
 
I often bring my children to the Out of Hour’s service, I went there the other day and was 
told to go home and then call them to get an appointment, even though I was standing 
right in front of them, The Out of Hours service is also very far away from the entrance, 
which I don’t think is ideal. 
 
Female; 37, Turkish  
 
Patient 8 
 
I came in through A&E. At A&E I initially saw someone very quickly, but then to see the 
specialist I had to wait for four hours. My operation has been cancelled four times, and 
they usually tell me about the cancellation only the night before, this meant all my plans 
constantly got ruined and I just couldn’t plan anything- I think the surgery referral process 
is very bad. The doctors and nurses are great though; they are polite and not rude...Mr 
Culpin (Consultant) is very nice. This is my third time here at the Fracture Clinic, the first 
time I had to wait about an hour, the second time only about ten minutes and this time, 
well I haven’t been seen yet and my appointment was supposed to be fifteen minutes ago. 
 
Male; 20-30, White British 
 
Patient 9 
 

Page 58



29 

 

I think the service that is given here is pretty good. I'm originally from South of Wales, but 
was working in London when I had a car accident; the helicopter flew me to the hospital 
(Accident and Emergency). This is my one year follow-up appointment at the Fracture 
Clinic. I’ve so far attended two follow up appointments after my accident (which is every 
3 month), in which I have found the whole process to be quick and effective. In saying 
that, there were a few issues I was not happy about, for my first follow-up appointment at 
the hospital, I was sent a private ambulance to pick me up from my home in South Wales, 
which I felt was nice but was not allowed to have my wife escort me through the journey 
in the ambulance. In the end my consultants (Peter Bates) secretary had to send an email 
for my wife to be allowed to travel down with me to London in the ambulance. When I was 
an inpatient I noticed that the communication within the hospital wards (not Fracture 
Clinic) between the staff and the patients was not good; half of the staff are not able to 
speak English properly and could not explain the information on the progress of my 
treatment. I like the staff at the Fracture Clinic, they are warm and approachable and my 
consultant Peter Bates is a great consultant as he is friendly; approachable and always 
makes me feel welcomed. 
 
I also like the new hospital and the location of the hospital; you can get some really great 
views of London from some of the windows. My only suggestion would be to make staff and 
patient communication better within the wards. 
 
Male; 50s, White British 
 
 
Patient 10 
 
I have come here today with my 16 year old daughter for an x-ray; she was involved in a 
car accident, in which she was admitted through A&E. She is here for her second x-ray 
follow-up appointment, I have to say I am a bit nervous and worried because I have been 
waiting here for an hour now (since my daughter got called in) and I am wondering if 
everything is alright. I'm not too sure how long these things take, but I do think it would 
have been nice if they stated on the referral letter an estimate time for how long this 
appointment will take. I think the Clinic staff are welcoming and approachable. 
 
Female; 40’s; Bangladesh  
 
Patient 11 
 
I'm here today for my first follow-up appointment after fracturing my arm. So far I have 
found the staff to be nice and helpful and the environment to be open and clean. If I had 
one criticism it would be the waiting time, I’ve been here for nearly 45 minutes and I have 
not been seen yet. Everything else is pretty perfect here compared to some hospitals I’ve 
been to...for example Queen Mary's Hospital is disgusting.   
 
Female; 50’s, White British 
 
Patient 12 
 
This is the second time my husband is visiting the Fracture Clinic; he had a fall a few 
weeks ago and was referred here through the A&E department.  Today the ambulance 
picked him up from our home and I got a train here (which was really nice of them to do). 
I think the staff here are friendly and informative and I also think the waiting area is open 
and welcoming and I don’t have to wait too long to be seen. I’m happy with the service 
given to my husband here and he also feels the same way as I do.  
 
Female; 70’s, White British  
 

Page 59



30 

 

Patient 13  
 
I am here today for my one year check up appointment. I was referred here from Wales. I 
was involved in a motorbike accident in Wales in which I broke my arm and practically 
destroyed my elbow. My injuries were so extreme that I was referred to London Royal 
Hospital because it’s a specialist hospital. The only thing I was disappointed about was the 
process of my referral. I had the accident on a Saturday in which I was admitted in to a 
hospital in Wales and was discharged the next day and was not seen until the following 
week at the Royal London Hospital. This meant I walked around with a broken arm for a 
week. I was also not supplied with any transport and was asked to make a least 3 trips 
back and forward, between London and Wales, before I had my surgery 4 weeks later. To 
be quite honest with you, I have found the staff and consultants in the Fracture Clinic to 
be very helpful when dealing with my queries and if the clinic is running late they usually 
tell you on your time of arrival. But I have noticed that the clinic runs late most of the 
time, which can be an inconvenient if you got somewhere to go i.e. work. 
 
Male, 50s, Welsh 
 
Patient 14 
 
I have been here since 9.30am (appointment time) and now its 10.20am and its seems like 
everyone that came after me is being seen before me- this is making me feel frustrated- I 
am asking myself why are other patients being seen before me, is it because I am Asian!! 
when I checked in at 9.30am the receptionist did not make eye contact with me and did 
not tell me who I would be seeing or if my appointment is running late- she needs to 
engage with patients better and needs to provide better customer service. I did not notice 
the screen informing patients of waiting times delays, until you highlighted that to me. 
It’s also taking them far too long to take off my plaster, look at the state of my hand, it 
turning black!!,I should have taken off this plaster two weeks ago and now I am in my fifth 
week...I don’t understand why it takes them so long to give patients appointments. 
Doctors and nurses are very good here; I feel they take good care of me when I see them.  
 
Male, 40’s, Pakistani  
 
Patient 15  
 
It’s my first time here, I had an x-ray at St Barts this morning and they told me to come 
here, they made the appointment for me...so far the experience has been good; the 
receptionist has been very helpful...as it’s my first time here at this hospital, I found the 
clinic difficult to find, the signs leading to the clinic are very small.  
 
Male; 20’s; White British   
 
Patient 16  
 
It’s my second visit here, so far the experience has been very good...on my first visit I was 
told that I would possibly have to wait 3 weeks before I could get an MRI scan appointment 
(this scan was required to find out what was wrong with me), then I would have to wait a 
further 3 weeks to see a consultant to discuss the MRI scan result...but luckily for me on 
my first visit there was a MRI scan cancellation on that day and they offered me that 
appointment, I was very happy about that as it saved me three weeks of waiting in 
anxiousness ...the consultant I saw was very good as he was very through... today I have 
waited a while, and not sure what time I will be seen.. I am really not that fussed about 
waiting I am more concerned about my leg getting better. In terms of improving the 
service...I would suggest they centralise the booking of external appointments (i.e. scans) 
from the Fracture Clinic,this would make it easier for patients as they would not have to 
go to a different department to make an appointment, for example if you need a MRI scan 

Page 60



31 

 

you would have to go the Scan Department, which is located on another floor to make that 
appointment. Also a lot of people find it difficult to navigate around the new hospital; so 
if you are asked to go to another department to make an appointment it would be useful if 
the Fracture Clinic could provide a map with directions. 
 
Patient 17  
 
The  service here has been generally alright, I broke my wrist 5-6 weeks ago in Kent, I 
went to Dartford Hospital and did x-rays, etc,  the doctors suggested since I lived in 
London maybe it would be easier to continue my care at the  Royal London Hospital , and 
they would send x-rays to the Royal London and provide me with all relevant document to 
move onto the next phase of my recovery...When I came to the Royal London I was told 
that no x-ray had been sent and the documents Dartford Hospital gave was of no use to 
them and I had to do everything all over again (second opinion)- I felt really frustrated 
that I had been through the whole process and was being held back from getting better as 
the two hospitals could not communicate with each other.  
 
Its good here, staff are doing their bit to help people get better and I appreciate that all 
the care I get is free...I like the way different teams (i.e. CT Scans) work together to 
come up with answers to help patients...for example I got referred to CT scans straight 
away and got seen within 2 weeks.  
 
Male, 20’s, White British  
 
Patient 18 
 
The service here is very good and we are happy with everything, the only downside is the 
waiting around... 
 
Male; 70’s, White British  
 
Summary of Patient Feedback (Based on Common themes and observations)  
 

• Most patients seem to value the care they get at the Fracture Clinic and generally 
seem to be happy with the overall service they receive- this is possibly due to the 
important fact that the Fracture Clinic is a ‘specialist clinic’ and patients all 
around the country are appreciative of this.  

• The majority of patients said that they think nursing and frontline staff at the 
Fracture Clinic are friendly, helpful and caring and that the consultants are 
through and reassuring.  

• Most patients cited ‘waiting times’ as their biggest grievance, the main issue is not 
knowing when they will be seen, for example a lot patients said that they did not 
know that the TV screen has information on waiting time delays or some have cited 
that they have not been informed of potential waiting time delays by the reception 
staff when they checked in.  

• Some new patients seemed unclear of the processes they would have to go through 
on their first appointment i.e. not knowing exactly what would happen next and 
how long they would have to wait.  

• Some patients feel that the Fracture Clinic works well with other departments (i.e. 
CT Scans) however some feel that the Fracture Clinic should book appointments for 
them, rather than ask them to book appointments themselves.  

• Some patients felt getting follow-up appointments can take a lot longer than 
expected or warranted.  

• Some patients mentioned that parking is an issue as there are not many places to 
park within the hospital site. Also there are not sufficient disabled bays near the 
main entrance.  

 

Page 61



32 

 

 
Recommendations (Based on patient feedback and observations)  
 

• Leaflet racks should be placed in more prominent places inside the consulting 

areas/cubicles; currently they are hidden way in certain cubicles or not easily 

visible to patients. (Observation) 

• Leaflets racks in the main waiting areas need to be monitored in order to ensure 

that leaflets are always available- on the day of our visit not a single leaflet was 

displayed on the racks. (Observation) 

• Waiting times was the biggest grievance for most patients; it appears most patients 
were not informed about potential waiting time delays when they checked in with 
the receptionist and also most patients are unaware that the TV screen has 
information about waiting time delays. We would suggest that the reception staff 
actively inform patients about potential delays when they check in for their 
appointments and also to highlight to patients to check the bottom of TV screen to 
get updates about potential waiting time delays.  

• It would be useful if reception staff can inform new patients what they should 
expect from the first visit and how long they might be expected to stay. This 
information can also be provided in a leaflet.  

• Most patients sitting in the waiting area are not able to view the TV screen with 
waiting time information due to the position of the TV screen; we would suggest 
that the TV screen is put in a more prominent place in the waiting area or there 
are different methods of informing people i.e. notice board. (Observation) 

• Water machines did not have any cups, we was told by nursing staff that cups are 
available from the reception staff upon request- however if we were not made 
aware of this by the nursing staff we would have assumed that there no cups 
available for patients- we would suggest to make this information apparent, there 
needs to be a notice above the water machine informing patients that all ‘Fracture 
Clinic Patients’ can get cups from the reception staff. (Observation) 

• We also feel patients should be offered ‘choice’ on whether they should have the 
x-ray and the consultant appointment on the same day; some local patients might 
not want to wait 3-5 hours for the whole process to conclude on each visit.  

• We would also suggest that ‘Appointment Letters’ be sent with information on the 
process & procedures of seeing patients at the Fracture Clinic (so there are no 
unexpected surprises); potential waiting time delays; information about parking 
and a map of the hospital.  

 

Page 62



33 

 

 

Appendix 3  

 
Enter and View Visit 
Oncology (Rahere – 5B Ward) 
St Bartholomew’s Hospital 
Barts Trust  
 
Date: Wednesday 2 October 2013; 10.00-12.30pm 
Healthwatch Members: Kate Melvin and Matilda Joseph   
Healthwatch Staff: Dianne Barham 
Barts Contact: Claire Murrell Head of Nursing, Cancer CAG 

 

Information that triggered the visit 

• poor national cancer patient experience survey results for 2012 

• the experience of four women in Tower Hamlets and Hackney who had used cancer 

services in the past twelve months. 

Purpose of the visit 

To follow up with staff and patients themes that had been identified from patient feedback 

including:  

• adequate nursing staff on the ward particularly at night 

• caring and compassionate staff 

• staff turnover and morale 

• patients understanding and being involved in their care 

• pain management 

• the environment 

• support and aftercare 

 
Conversation with Head of Nursing for Cancer, Matron of Day Ward and Matron of Rahere 
Ward: 
 
St Bartholomew’s is a specialist cancer service that covers the majority of cancers including 
breast, cervical, testicular as well as leukaemia and lymphedema.   
 
The majority of breast cancer surgery is now done as day surgery.  This can lead to some 
patients feeling as if they are being ‘rushed’ through.  It’s important for the hospital to think 
about how they can manage patient expectations and to support them to be prepared for 
what is going to happen on the day. The hospital is able to offer overnight accommodation in 
a hostel ‘Gloucester House’ for people travelling longer distances so that they can stay the 
night before as it is a 7am start.  
 
Staff felt that the poor national cancer patient experience survey results do not reflect the 
work that has been done by the new Cancer Clinical Academic Group (CAG) which came into 
effect in October whilst the survey was conducted in September.  We would hope to see 
some real improvements next year then. London hospitals all perform poorly in the survey.   
 

Page 63



34 

 

They are also struggling to reach the target of a 15 percent return on the friends and family 
test survey. They may be able to use volunteers to focus on carrying out the survey to 
improve the response rate.   
 
The staff were questioned as to whether the rumours were true that clinical nurse specialist 
or ‘cancer nurses’ as patients call them, were being made redundant.  Staff said that there 
was a current proposal to reduce the Cancer Nurse Specialists by 20 percent. In our patient 
interviews these people were consistently singled out as providing vital support and 
waswhere they went for information and reassurance.  Indeed they were seen as being 
essential to cancer care services.  
 
The ratio of nurses to patients is currently one to five. However, the consultation currently 
being undertaken in light of the financial review is suggesting that this be reduced to one 
nurse to seven patients. Again given that our feedback had highlighted that patients already 
feel that there are low staff numbers particularly at night.  We feel that this would impact 
on patients feeling safe and indeed on being safe. This is below the rate at similar hospitals 
and comparable cancer centres. If there were staff shortages or illness this ratio could easily 
fall to one to ten.  
 
We asked what impact this was having on staff morale and were informed that staff were 
leaving to take up jobs in other Trusts and that they have a high vacancy rate. They can use 
bank staff rather than agency staff to meet any gaps but they are generally not cancer 
trained nurses.    
 
High turnover rates may also be due to the patient mix on the ward with a wide range of 
cancers and treatments, a mixture of short and long stay patients and oncology and non-
oncology patients. This was clearly challenging as they require different skills mixes and you 
may have the ‘dying’ next to the ‘surgical patients’. 
 
There can be issues with providing cancer care across several sites and cancer patients can 
end up being cared for on general surgical wards. They are offering training to non cancer 
nurses on cancer care where appropriate. Unquestionably the feeling from the staff was that 
nurses on the oncology wards needed to be cancer trained. 
 
They do try and ‘individualise’ the care as much as possible and commented how they 
reminded nurses to use people’s names and not their bed numbers.  
 
The cancer nurse specialists were also seen as being key to patients being given information 
at the ‘right’ time and at the right level. However there was some feeling that this could 
deskill the ward staff and may be impacting on their giving all round care.  
 
Patients are invited back to the Health and Wellbeing clinic after a few weeks but staff did 
not seem to be aware of the full range of aftercare programmes such as  Cancer Kin,  
‘Transitions’ or the Survivorship Education Programme which were highly valued by patients 
who knew about them. We are not sure why they are not better promoted to patients on the 
ward.  
 
Visit to Tunnel 
 
We asked to see the ‘tunnel’ through which patients travel on their way (but not usually on 
their way back) from surgery and about which there had been complaints. The following was 
observed: 
 

• It was extremely ‘hot’ and ‘stuffy’ 

• The paint was falling from the ceiling 

Page 64



35 

 

• There were large patches of damp on the walls and ceiling 

• The wires were not ‘encased’ 

Nonetheless, it didn’t seem to worry the Matron that this is what patients see immediately 
before they go into surgery. It certainly didn’t give the impression that they are going to a 
hygienic and germ free environment. We accept that this part of the building is due to be 
demolished and any maintenance is likely to be a waste of very limited resources but perhaps 
some apology and explanation could be provided and reassurance. If possible it might also be 
important to reassure patients that it does not pose a health risk.  
 
Rahere Ward  
 

The ward cares for women with cancer including gynaecological, breast and bowel surgery; 

chemotherapy or radiotherapy and palliative care. They also care for non-cancer fertility 

surgery.  Some people can be there for less than 24 hours and some can be there for two to 

three months. As noted above this mix can make it difficult as the different groups require 

different nursing skills.  

 

There are 22 beds: three rooms of two, two bays of four and individual side rooms.  
 
General comments 
 
This is a new ward and appeared clean and tidy and also patients observed did not complain 
about this.  
 
There were wide spacious rooms and large bathrooms. It is well equipped with one patient 
commenting, “It’s like a hotel in here.  I’ve been private before and it wasn’t as good as 
this”. 
 
However, the new wards have the potential to leave patients feeling isolated which leads to 
them feeling unsafe and increases anxiety.  Even if the nursing levels are the same as the old 
wards it feels like there are fewer staff as they are unable to keep an eye on a large number 
of patients at once and they are less visible to patients. You lose the sense that ‘nurses’ are 
always around. 
 
We didn’t get the sense the protected meal times were being observed. One patient was 
eating their lunch and was spilling it all the way down her front.  The Healthwatch 
representative helped ‘clean’ her when requested. The representative also mentioned that 
the woman was having difficulty to a member of staff (presumed to be a nurse) but the nurse 
appeared to just shrug. 
 
The Healthwatch representative was also asked to draw the curtains to let in light. It 
appeared the staff had not considered this to be important for the patients. 
 
The date on the staff on duty board was wrong so we were not sure if they were the staff on 
at the time. 
 
There was a really lovely patient/family room with a TV, coffee and tea making facilities and 
leaflets and information. It appeared they only had thin plastic cups for the tea and coffee 
and not polystyrene.  
 
Talking to patients 
 
Patient A: 
 

Page 65



36 

 

White English Female – aged 84, lives in Tower Hamlets, diagnosed with bowel and colon 
cancer accompanied by a clot on the lung.  Her son attended the interview. 
 
Brief summary of experience:  Was diagnosed in May.  GP originally thought it was IBS but 
following tests discovered it was cancer.  Is presently having chemotherapy tables to shrink 
the cancer and is also having treatment for the clot.  The clot was discovered when she had a 
scan. Family were impressed that they were phoned within an hour of her going home after 
the scan to be told there was a clot on the lung.   
 
General attitude was they are ‘doing the best for me’. The care has been good. ‘She felt she 
and her family had been ‘told enough’ and the son agreed.  There have been ‘no delays’ at 
any stage and there were ‘very good staff’. 
 
Considers the food to be ‘good – they give you too much and can’t eat a lot’.The also 
commented that the ‘ward is cleaned every day and on top of everything too’ 
 
The also considered that they different parts of the healthcare system ‘work well together’ 
and they ‘wouldn’t change anything’.   
 
Overall very appreciative of care. 
 
Patient B:  
 
Afro Caribbean Female, 47, from Hackney, diagnosed with an UPS (unknown primary). Also 
has Myasthenia Gravis (MG) – an auto immune disease 
 
Summary of Experience: Had back pain, went to outpatients, was told it was a trapped 
nerve.  Had to go to emergency GP, received stronger painkillers.  Own GP subsequently gave 
blood tests, x ray and all ‘negative’.  Again a week later was told that all her bloods were 
‘negative’.  Still believed it was a trapped nerve and told to ‘keep moving’.   
 
Three weeks later, on the phone to a friend, ‘tearful and not sleeping’.  Friend said go to 
hospital as believed it couldn’t just be a trapped nerve and back pain. By this stage, she 
could not walk.   
 
At the Homerton she was then kept in as the pain was so bad. The physios came and gave her 
more painkillers. Had an MRI Scan – ‘the toilet roll tube one’ but was ‘classed asnon urgent’. 
They discovered she had a compressed fracture of the disc. Then had a further scan a few 
days later – ‘again the toilet roll tube one’.Results showed she had two compressed fractures 
and two hairline fractures of the ribs. Further tests then revealed that she had bone cancer 
of pelvis, ribs and spine but not known where the primary is although they now think it is 
‘hormonally based and had spread into the bones’.  (She believed she would receive the 
results of further tests on the day of the HW visit) ‘Hopefully someone will sit me down and 
tell me what is what’ 
 
‘(Being told you have cancer) is the worse news ever but for the want of a better word, it 
was made not the worst time in my life’, because, she said, of the good treatment in the 
Homerton. 
 
She was then actually told she had Stage IV cancer by a doctor (Dr Sloane) at the Homerton – 
she was not expecting this news and thought it was just a routine consultation.   
 
Diagnosed with MG at the age of 20, she had been seeing a consultant regularly. Before she 
had been diagnosed with cancer and when she was not feeling well with her back, she had 
told the consultant for the MG, Dr Radanovitch, at Barts repeatedly that something ‘was not 
right’ but he had not listened.  She feels more upset with him because of this since she 

Page 66



37 

 

believed it delayed her diagnosis. She is less resentful of the GPs since the blood tests had all 
been ok. 
 
Following the news, she was told that she had to go to Barts ‘immediately for treatment as it 
has to start sooner rather than later. I was freaked with the news – end game and all that 
and I was just told I had to start treatment immediately’ 
 
She was given a ‘bone strengthener’ and was transferred to Barts without being consulted at 
all. She was transferred immediately on the Friday – ‘I felt picked up and dumped here. 
Patients waiting to go home have to wait longer than that. I was given no time to breathe 
and I know people can have Stage IV for years’  
 
Far prefers the Homerton.  In Lamb Ward, at the Homerton, her experience had been ‘good, 
easy and was kept informed’. 
 
She said she ‘feels as she has been kidnapped here.  I don’t want to be here as I did not 
make the decision’. 
 
‘On Monday (this week) I was told that I would have the bone strengthener and the tablet 
but I didn’t know what the tablet was for. I have been given no choice of different 
treatments’.  However, the Clinical Nurse Specialist brought her information and she was 
told she could ask for more.   
 
Given she also has a MG nurse who is based at UCH, she phoned her, who reassured her that 
she could take the tablets with her MG medication and condition.   But, she says:  ‘I feel as if 
I have been Shanghai-ed – no-one explained what type of treatment. I was just sobbing. I was 
just not consulted about the treatment’.  Suggested that she should complain which she did 
and had a meeting with the Matron, Registrar and nurses.  However, she feels, ‘she has not 
been listened to’ 
 
‘I was also not asked whether I wanted treatment at all’ 
 
She is upset as she would have far preferred to stay in the Homerton where her family and 
support network could visit.     
 
‘I had a hissy fit and Brian this junior doctor came – and did he have an attitude – a major 
attitude. And he just said, so what is so special about the Homerton then? But he did not 
understand that my people can come in their lunch hour or drop in some food’ 
 
‘And what I don’t understand is that I am having medication first and then chemo and then 
radioactive stuff – so if it is just medication, why can’t I stay in the Homerton? And all I am 
told is that it is the best place to be. ‘I would have been happy at UCH as my (MG) nurse is 
there. The choice was taken away from me’ 
 
Does not feel ‘safe’ in Barts and ‘I just don’t feel comfortable. I feel there is an ulterior 
motive – why was I transferred so fast? And they said I had to have this treatment there and 
then and this is where they treat people.’ 
 
She comments, too, that the staff on the ward are variable. When she arrived she asked for 
some diapers and she was told by a nurse that they had run out – ‘the nurse just shrugged 
but then I asked someone else and he found me some’.  She thinks that some of the staff are 
just ‘lazy’ but, ‘there is also not enough staff here. They do come when you call them but in 
the evenings they are busy.’  
 
‘It is clean’  
 
‘Food is like pre-school portions’ 

Page 67



38 

 

 
‘There is no privacy – people poking their heads around while getting washed. Curtains are 
closed for a reason but they still do it.  I feel vulnerable here like Alice in Wonderland being 
picked up and dropped’ 
 
However she does feel that generally her care has been well co-ordinated between different 
branches of the care system.   
 

Page 68



39 

 

 
Patient C 
 
White English Female in her 70’s from Tower Hamlets. 
She said that the ‘nurses were marvellous’ the food is good and you get a good choice.  
 
The GP had referred her to the Royal London after she had been getting bleeding like the end 
of a bad period.  Royal London found polyps on her ovaries but because the ovaries shrink as 
you get older they weren’t sure what is was. Perhaps a cyst on her ovary. When she went to 
have her MRI examination they found her sugar was high. She was sent on to St Barts for 
further investigations and she was waiting for tests. She had been here for three days. She 
hadn’t had any problems with waiting times or delays in her treatment.  
 
A doctor had come in the day before and started talking about her breasts -they had the 
wrong patient notes! However she had been worried about a lump on her breast for a while 
which her GP hadn’t checked properly she felt so the Doctor gave her a thorough 
examination, said it was a blister and that they would remove it for her later. This had put 
her mind at rest.  
 
One of the nurses - Steve ‘was very nice and helpful’. Staff were also fine at night time and 
she had been sleeping very well. ‘Whatever you want they help you with’ She’s been in a lot 
of hospitalsand ‘they’re more efficient than any of them’ 
 
She is a patient at Gill Street Practice in Tower Hamlets ‘is good but you never get seen on 
time.  You show up for a ten o’clock appointment and don’t get seen until twenty to eleven’ 
Dr Livingstone was good but she’s left now.  I have Dr Vickers now who is good and there is a 
good practice manager.’  
 
‘Our pharmacy has also been good.  The GP sends my prescriptions there and my husband 
goes and picks them up’ Nash Pharmacy on Commercial Road. 
 
Patient D  
 
White English Female, 92 years old. 
 
She was very happy with her care and was being discharged today and was sitting waiting to 
go home. She had been in the ward for six days. The GP had organised a blood test at the 
beginning of July because they thought she was anaemic.  She said there were no delays in 
her treatment but then she said ‘I came in for the operation the first time but they said they 
didn’t have enough nurses for aftercare so they sent me home again’ But she was back in 
within the week and they did the operation. 
 
‘I have a key worker who is personal to me – which is very helpful. She has been in twice to 
see me and I can call her whenever I need to’ 
 
She said the nights were also ok. 
 
‘The food is good for hospital food and you have a good choice, mind you I’m always a good 
eater’  
 
She didn’t have any problems with the pain management and said that she was able to 
manage her own medications for her other conditions well while she was in the hospital.  
 
She wasn’t worried about her discharge home as all thought she lived alone she had a son and 
friends and neighbours who would look after her.  
 

Page 69



40 

 

 
Patient E 
 
Young woman late 20’s early 30’s Leytonstone, Middle Eastern 
 
‘I went to Whipps Cross A and E on the Bank Holiday weekend and they expected that I had 
appendicitis. I was referred for an ultrasound on the Tuesday or Wednesday.  On Saturday I 
had MRI scan. Wednesday the MDT came back and I had the operation the following day.’ 
 
‘I was referred to a nurse oncologist but nobody had mentioned that I might have cancer.  It 
seems that they want to keep you calm and not worry you but it would be better if they 
were more honest.  It would have been better if they had said that there is likelihood or it’s 
very likely that you’ve got cancer.’  
 
She didn’t really feel that she had time to understand or be involved in her care as it all 
happened so quickly. ‘I didn’t have time to think or to do any research – they just said they 
had to get it out’ 
 
She felt that she would need to have psychological help or counselling after the treatment ‘I 
can’t wash myself as I can’t look at my scar.  My sister helps me’ 
 
She felt that the nurses were good but that there was a shortage of night staff.  ‘The day 
after my operation I was high on morphine, firstly I didn’t know where the alarm was and 
when I did find it I couldn’t get to it. I couldn’t see the nurse and nobody came in.  In the 
end I called my family on my mobile phone to get a nurse to come and see me.  The staff are 
very helpful though’ 
 
She felt her pain was managed ok but she had a lot of vomiting when she went on the oral 
painkiller.  
 
‘The food is awful, not appetising and bland.  The halal food is always curry.  Not all 
Muslims are south Asian and I don’t like the curry.  I’d rather have non-curry, something like 
a halal chicken sandwich or lasagne.  Sometimes I have the kosher.  It’s like having 
aeroplane food’ 
 
Other observations 
Someone’s patient notes were left out on the reception desk while we were standing there 
with the desk unattended for at least 5 minutes.  
 
Conclusions 
 
There was a sense from patients that decisions were made and actions were taken so quickly 
that they did not have time to take in information or make informed decisions.  All though 
they could see the potential benefit of quick action it also seemed to leave them in a state of 
shock and struggling to cope.  It seems that aftercare is especially crucial to this group and 
sympathetic nursing with the capacity to perhaps take more time to explain to patients what 
is happening.  
 
With this in mind we feel that it is very, very important that nursing ratios are not cut in the 
cancer service. As noted there already seems to be issues with patients feeling safe at night 
and staff morale and staff vacancies are already at a critical level. Clearly, one of the factors 
that differentiated between those who felt ‘safe’ and those that did not, was the level and 
amount of nursing care they had received.  
 
We would have liked to have seen more awareness from the nursing staff of the aftercare 
programmes currently available. We would like to know how these are and could be 

Page 70



41 

 

promoted to patients as well as what percentage of patients who access them. This 
information could be provided as part of a discharge pack.   
 
If Barts is going to improve its patient experience survey results it needs to ensure it has 
specialist nurses and retains the critical role of the Cancer Nurse Specialists. It would be 
important, too, to check how last year’s survey results had been used to improve services.  
 
It seems that the current patient mix on the wards is difficult to manage and is difficult for 
patients with people who are dying lying in bed next to someone who is having fertility 
surgery.  
 
There also continues to be a ‘silo’ approach to care without any evidence of a smooth 
transition between areas of care and equally once patients leave hospital. It was also 
concerning that the staff were not aware of services that patients could receive once they 
finished their medical treatment.  
 
There is a sense from patients and certainly from staff that it would be preferable to have 
one specialist cancer service across Barts which would enable the development of specialist 
cancer nurses and other staff and provide patients with more of a one stop service. It would 
be interesting to survey patients regarding their preference as it may be the case that local 
communities wish to retain local services but patients would prefer to have specialist 
services further away.  
 
 
Recommendations  
 

1. The Cancer Nurse Specialists are highly regarded by patients and are key to the co-
ordination of their care. We would certainly recommend that these posts are 
retained at current levels. 

 
2. Reducing the staff ratio to one nurse to seven patients will almost certainly have a 

negative impact on patient safety on the ward as some patients have already 
expressed that they are worried about the care particularly at night. We would 
recommend that the staff ratio be maintained at one nurse to five patients. 

 
3. Patients be consulted on the options of more specialist cancer services being 

provided on a single Barts site or services provided as part of general care service 
in their nearest hospital.   

 
4. Better co-ordination of inpatient and aftercare programmes and an awareness 

programme on the wards of what other services were available post hospital 
treatment. 

 
5. Some explanation be provided to patients regarding the current state of the old 

building and particularly the tunnel that was used to take them up to surgery.  
 

 

Page 71



42 

 

 
Appendix 4  

 

 

Ambrose King Centre  
Enter and View Report  
Date / Time: Monday 23rd September 2013 / 10.00am -12.30pm 
Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Staff:Shamsur Choudhury and Lindsey Williams 
Contact at Ambrose King Centre: Dr LiatSarner (Clinical Lead for Sexual Health) 

Ambrose King Centre, Royal London Hospital, Whitechapel E1 1BB  
 

Purpose of Visit:  
 

1. To ascertain feedback from users of the Ambrose King Centre on their experience 
of using the service. 

2. To find out if users had any suggestions for improving the services provided at the 
Ambrose King Centre.  

 
 
 Key Facts/figures about the Ambrose King Centre 
 

• There were 35,000 visits in the year 12-13.   

• 40% of users are under 25 and 20% of users are men that have sex with other men 
(MSM). 

• 50% of users are from Tower Hamlets.  

• 48% of users are white; 21% black and 15% Asian. 

• 13% patients diagnosed with STI (16% M; 10.5% F)-mainly heterosexual <25 and MSM 
>25 

• Most users access the service by friend’s recommendation or via searching online. 

• There are plans to move into new premises in the near future. 
 
Please refer to attached ‘Appendix’ for service information (Page 7).  
 
General Information (Information gathered from discussion with management and general 
observation) 
 

• There is good signage for directing people to the Centre from Whitechapel Road 
(front of Royal London Hospital); however the signage is poor from the back of the 
hospital i.e. from Stepney Way and roads behind Stepney way. One particular sign 
at Newark Street directed people the wrong way as this sign leads to a road that 
has been blocked off due to work being undertaken at the new hospital.   

• The information Board (i.e. contains information on service and opening hours) 
outside the main entrance of the centre is not easily visible to users due to the 
positioning of the notice board (stuck on the wall on the right side) also 
information inside the notice board is written in very small fonts- it’s not obvious 
to everyone that it is a information board. 

• Currently there are no patient involvement activities and they do not have a 
patient group. However they acquire patient feedback via the NELNET Survey and 
Mystery shopping. There are also plans to collect patient feedback via a ‘Comments 
Card’ and they are now in the process of rewriting the ‘generic questions’ on the 
Barts Health Comments Card to make the questions more suitable for sexual health 
services.  

• Leaflet racks were half empty in both male and female waiting areas.  

• The layout of the Centre is not user friendly for individuals with a physical 
disability. 

Address:   

Page 72



43 

 

• There are plans to install Wi-Fi in the near future.  

• TV Screens in the waiting room was not switched on (not sure if they work). 

• Having separate waiting areas for male and female is a good idea- it makes users 
feel more comfortable.    

 
Patient Comments/Feedback 
 
The Ambrose King Centre has separate male and female waiting areas. The comments 
from the female waiting area were collected by a female member of staff and the 
comments from the male waiting area were collected by a male member of staff. 
 
Female Waiting Area Comments 
 
Patient 1 
 
I’ve visited this clinic a couple of times now, I find the walk-in service easy to access and I 
am usually seen on time. I find the staff friendly and informative. Overall I think the 
service is good. 
 
Female; 20’s; White British 
 
Patient 2 
 
I've been coming to this clinic for a while now; I think the service is okay. I tend to use the 
walk-in service; the walk-in service normally has a waiting time of up to two hours (which 
is the expected time for most clinics, so I don’t mind). I’ve noticed that the walk-in 
service is busier in the morning then it is in the afternoon. As for the location, I think if I 
was a new user to the service I might have difficulties finding the premises. 
 
Female; 20-30s; Caribbean 
 
Patient 3 
 
I’ve been coming to this clinic for years now and I think the staff and doctors are very 
approachable and welcoming. 
 
Female; 30s; Other 
 
Patient 4 
 
I think the online service is really good and I also find that the location is quite discrete 
which is a good thing too. The nursing and clinical staff are friendly, but I find the 
receptionists can be unwelcoming at times (in the way that they talk to you), which is a 
bit of a letdown. 
 
Female, 20s, White British 
 
Patient 5 
 
I've booked my appointment online and I have been waiting here for nearly 50 minutes, 
which I think is too long. I think that if I accessed the walk-in service than I should be 
expected to wait for that amount of time but if I’ve booked online, than I should be seen 
quicker than that, apart from that the staff are nice and I like the location. 
 
Female 20s other 
 
Patient 6 

Page 73



44 

 

 
I came in today to book my appointment and was told to come back from 9.30am, the 
time now is 10.30am, it's been nearly an hour and I've still not been seen, which I think is 
a bit long. Apart from that, the staff and doctors are polite and friendly, but the 
receptionists can sometimes come across as rude in the way they respond when dealing 
with enquires. 
 
Female; 30s; White British  
 
Patient 7 
 
I've been coming here for four years and have no complaints with the service that's been 
provided. Last time I was here, my mother came with me who could not speak English but 
was provided with an interpreter, which was really good. I also think the staff and doctors 
are really nice and are easy to talk to.  
 
Female; 30s; White European  
 
Patient 8 
 
It's my first time here and I think the staff are friendly and polite. I think the location is 
fine but it's a bit difficult to find, I had to walk around the building twice before I found 
the entrance, I actually thought it was a building-site. So far the waiting time is ok and I 
think the environment is clean. 
 
Female; 20s; White European 
 
Male Waiting Area  
 
Patient 9 
 
The receptionist is very helpful; she gave me information about the services provided 
here. The nurse I saw was very good; they were attentative. Last time I came here I 
waited 1.30hrs to see a nurse, but I did not mind. Today I am here to speak to a nurse 
about my test results; although I could get my test result by SMS or email I opted to see a 
nurse to speak to them about my test result; I think them providing this option is very 
helpful- it’s more reassuring. Today I waited 40 minutes and I am very happy with the 
service I received; the nurse was very reassuring. The waiting area is ok; could be better 
i.e. better lighting, also the seating area and reception area is very close, sometimes you 
can overhear other people talking; but I guess this does not matter so much as there are 
only other men here, so there is no need to feel embarrassed. There is also a female 
receptionist working here today; I don’t mind her, but other people might.  
 
Male; mid 20’s; Hungary (lives outside the borough and friends recommended service)   
 
Patient 10 
 
This is my second time here, I think the location is accessible and easy to find.  The 
website for the service is very good. Staff are very nice, they make you feel comfortable 
and the receptionist is also friendly. I booked an appointment yesterday via the website 
and was given an appointment for today, so far the appointment is running 40 minutes 
late; it would have been useful to know if you had to wait 40 minutes in advance. I feel as 
long as you get the treatment and service you came for, the environment of the clinic is 
secondary; it’s better to spend the money on things that will help users. I also feel that 
having a separate waiting area for men and women is a good idea, everyone feels more 
comfortable to access the service.  
 

Page 74



45 

 

Male; mid 20’s, White British (lives outside the borough and heard about the service via 
word of mouth)   
 
Patient 11 
 
The wait for the drop-in clinic is quite long, you have to wait at least 2 hours- but I guess 
the wait is expected due to the nature of the service so I don’t mind waiting.  The 
frontline staff are very friendly and the clinical staff make you feel comfortable and are 
non judgemental.  The waiting room is slightly warm, it would be great if they could turn 
down the heating a bit more, it can get uncomfortable especially if you have to sit here 
for a few hours. Also they could do with a few more leaflets, as the leaflet racks seem 
pretty empty. I like the fact they communicate with people using different methods i.e. 
you can get your test result via SMS.  
 
Male, mid 20’s, White British (Resident of Tower Hamlets) 
 
Patient 12  
 
I was referred here from St Barts; I got an appointment here very quickly and was seen 
quickly. Staff here are excellent and everyone here is very helpful. I was very happy with 
the consultation with the clinician; they explained things properly and made me feel 
comfortable. I also feel the directional signs for the AKC from the main road are very 
good; I did not experience any difficulties in finding the centre. I really don’t have any 
suggestions for improving the service so far I feel everything is ok here.  
 
Males; 30’s, White British (lives outside the borough)  
 
Patient 13  
 
It’s my first time here, I came here at 10.20 and was told I might be seen by 11am, and 
now it’s 11.40am- so the wait is quite frustrating.  The receptionist has been helpful so far 
and signs leading from the old Royal London Hospital are quite good, I did not have any 
problems finding the Centre. The opening times for the centre could be extended to make 
it more convenient for people who work; they should open at 8am and close at 8pm.  The 
opening times of the AKC is the main reason why I usually don’t come here, I usually go to 
the Dean Street Clinic because it opens at 8am.  
 
Male, mid 20’s, White British (Resident of Tower Hamlets)  
 
Patient 14  
 
I live in Leyton and Googled sexual health services and this place came top of the list on 
Google. I went on their website and booked an appointment and got one for today. I got a 
confirmation of my appointment via SMS and in the SMS it highlighted that I might have to 
wait 45minutes before I am seen- my experience of booking the appointment via the 
website was very good. So far the staff I have seen have been very helpful, however I did 
find it difficult to find the Centre; it just does not have a proper entrance. My suggestions 
for improving the service would be to reduce waiting times and open late in the evenings.  
 
Male; mid 20’s, White British (lives outside the borough) 
 
Summary of Patient Feedback (Common Themes)  
 

• Majority of the users gave very positive feedback about the clinical staff; they said 
clinical staff made them feel comfortable and are non judgemental.   

• Users feel the website for the service is easy to find as it is ranked high in Google.  

• There are positive experiences of using the online booking system.  

Page 75



46 

 

• Users like the different methods available of getting test results i.e. SMS 

• Directional signs from main road are deemed ok from the perspective of users that 
have used the service before, but new users could potentially experience 
difficulties in finding the Centre, mainly due to the discrete location and building 
works surrounding the Centre.  

• There are suggestions for extending the walk-in service opening times (before 
8.30am and after 6.30pm) as current opening times is not deemed suitable for 
people who work.  

• Waiting times for the walk in service seems to be an issue for users; most users 
stating that it can usually takes almost 2 hours before seen by clinical staff.  

• Some users (female waiting area) thought the receptionist is not welcoming; these 
comments did not resonate in the male waiting area; in fact the most of the male 
users said the receptionist is friendly.   

• There is confusion amongst users about appointments that are booked via online 
and text, users seem to be assuming that they are given a fixed appointment time - 
hence numbers of users have commented that their appointments always run late. 
However AKC management have confirmed that everyone that is asked to attend a 
walk in service is ‘not’ offered an appointment they are offered a ‘appointment 
slot’ e.g. asked to come in at a specified time (appointment slot) and they also 
said that they always remind users that the appointment time given is not the time 
they will be seen- people are generally required to wait at least 40-45 minutes and 
sometimes even longer depending on number of users attending the walk in service 
on that day- the information about potential waiting times is highlighted to users 
via SMS or their preferred method of communication.  

 
Recommendations /Suggestion for Management   
 

• There needs to be more pro active approach to getting users involved with service 
feedback; delivery and design. We would strongly recommend the AKC looks at 
developing a user group specifically for sexual health services. This user group 
could be virtual or meeting based and interest in joining the group could be 
promoted via the ‘Assessment and Triage’ form and the website. In the longer run 
our aspiration would be that the AKC proactively engages and involves users of the 
service in all its future plans and decision making.  

• As majority of users of the service are in their mid 20-30’s, AKC management 
should consider using different mediums to communicate with users i.e. they could 
use social networking sites like Facebook or Twitter to let users know if the walk-in 
service is running late or provide updates about services generally.  

• Review and update the direction signs from Stepney Way and surrounding roads and 
put up better signs on the roads behind the new Royal London Hospital. 

• Make sure that there is monitoring of the leaflet racks to ensure that leaflets racks 
are always full.  

• In order to tackle the confusion around booked appointment times and 
appointment slots; it would be useful if the receptionist reminds the user when 
they attend on the day that this is not an time specific appointment and they might 
have to possibly wait up to 45 minutes to 2 hours until they are seen.  

 
Healthwatch Tower Hamlets representatives and staff would like to thank Dr LiatSarner 
and her team for making all the necessary arrangements in organising the visit and for 
helping us during our visit. 
 
DISCLAIMER: 
 
1. The observations made in this report relate only to the visit carried out at the Ambrose 
King Centre on the 23rd September 2013, which lasted for 2.5 Hours. 
 

Page 76



47 

 

 2. This report is not representative of all patients/service users/carers. It only represents 
the views of those who were able to contribute within the restricted time available. 
 

 
Appendix- Supplementary Information on the service (supplied by Dr LiatSarner) 
 
Ambrose King Centre - What is the need? 
 

• Tower Hamlets 5th highest rates of STI in England disproportionately affecting 
young people, MSM and BME. 

• High prevalence HIV (6/1000) with 25% undiagnosed and 16% diagnosed late 
• Teenage pregnancy rates higher than England average, although reduced by 45% 

since 1998 
• Young population 
• Increasing population of MSM in borough 

 
Ambrose King Centre- What They offer:  
 

• Open Access – No referral necessary 
• Confidential and non-judgmental (You’re welcome accredited) 
• Full range of sexual health testing available 
• Immediate diagnosis with onsite testing and results 
• Immediate free treatment 
• Full range of contraception 
• Specialist services for sexual problems, sex workers, complex genital issues 

including ED/genital dermatology/difficult warts, complex contraception 
• Partner notification and results management 
• Clinical psychology and counseling services for high risk sex and sexual problems  

 
Ambrose King Centre- Staffing: 
 

• Consultant led service 
• Specialty and primary care trainee doctors 
• Nurse practitioners 
• Junior nursing team 
• Sexual health technicians 
• Health advisors 
• Clinical Psychology 
• Reception and support staff 

 
Ambrose King Centre- How do patients access? 
 

• Website: www.bartssexualhealth.nhs.uk 
 

Walk in: Monday 8.30-6.30; Tues/Thur/Fri 8.30-4, Wednesday 11.30-4 
Text: Monday-Saturday including Monday and Tuesday evenings 
Book online: Monday-Saturday including Monday and Tuesday evenings 

 
Patient Journey:  
 

• Reception 
– Patient completes registration and triage form 
– Receptionist checks form for accuracy and assesses whether patient needs 

to be seen urgently 
– Reception informs patient of their slot time if walked in, or signposts to 

waiting room if being seen straight away (urgent, booked by text/online) 
–  

Page 77



48 

 

 
Appointment based services 

• Clinical Psychology 
• Sexual problems services   
• CV clinic 
• Health Advisors 
• Complex male and female problems 
• Contraception including coils and implant insertion/removal 
• Sex worker clinic 
• Genital dermatoses 
• Anoscopy 

 
Patient Feedback NELNET Survey 2012 
 

• Good 
– 97% trust and confidence in staff 
– 94% Recommend to others 
– 96% Satisfied with care and treatment received 
– 97% treated with dignity and respect 
– 93% rate care as good/excellent 

 
• Not so good 

– 82% reception staff welcoming 
_  88% reception clean and welcoming 
 

Patient Feedback 
 

• What do patients say? 
– Waiting times & Access 
– Environment 
– Staff 

• What have we done in response? 
– More evening clinics, expanded Saturday 
– Increased ways of accessing and reduced waiting times 
– Refurbishment of waiting areas and female reception 
– Electronic patient record reduced reception workload & waiting times for 

patients 
– Customer services training for reception staff 

 
Patient Comments 

 
• Everything excellent. I had no problems 
• The only thing I was unhappy with was the wait 
• Everyone I dealt with was absolutely lovely 
• Online booking is very convenient and efficient. Liked getting a text confirmation 
• Make the waiting area less quiet 
• Always been an excellent service 

 

Page 78


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S)
	Minutes , 19/11/2013 Health Scrutiny Panel

	3.2 HealthWatch: Summary Feedback from Barts Health
	HealthWatch Summary Feedback from Barts Health Dec HSP
	Barts Comprehensive Patient Experience Feedback Report Nov 13 HW HSP - HealthWatch


